651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, CA 95678

phone  (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Date: May 24, 2018
Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting

Location: NCPA'’s Roseville Office, 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, California
Time: 9:30 am

The Commission may take action on any of the items listed on this Agenda regardless of
whether the matter appears on the Consent Calendar or is described as an Action Item, a Report
or an Informational Iltem. This agenda is supplemented by Staff Reports which are available to
the public upon request. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.5, the following
is the location at which the public can view Agendas and other public writings: NCPA Offices,
651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, California, or www.ncpa.com.

Time estimates are provided as part of the Commission’s effort to manage its time at
Commission meetings. Listed times are estimated only and are subject to change at any time,
including while the meeting is in progress. The Commission reserves the right to use more or
less time on any item, to change the order of items, and/or to continue items to another meeting.
Particular items may be heard before or after the time estimated on the agenda. This may occur
in order to best manage the time at a meeting or to adapt to the participation of the public. To
ensure participation in a particular item, we suggest arriving at the beginning of the meeting and
remaining until the item is called.

Persons requiring accommodations in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act in

order to attend or participate in this meeting are requested to contact the NCPA Secretary at
916.781.3636 in advance of the meeting to arrange for such accommodations.

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions (9:30 — 9:35 am)

2. Approve minutes of the April 26, 2018, Regular Commission Meeting (9:35 — 9:40 am)

PUBLIC FORUM

Any member of the public who desires to address the Commission on any item considered by
the Commission at this meeting before or during the Commission’s consideration of that item
shall so advise the Chair and shall thereupon be given an opportunity to do so. Any member of
the public who desires to address the Commission on any item within the jurisdiction of the
Commission and not listed on the Agenda may do so at this time.


http://www.ncpa.com/

OPEN SESSION

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES (9:40 — 10:15 am)

3.

4.

General Manager’'s Business Progress Report and Update
Executive Committee

Facilities Committee

Finance Committee

Legal Committee

Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

CONSENT CALENDAR (10:15-10:30 am)

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If anitem is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar. Prior to the roll call vote to
approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to determine if any Member
wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

10.

11.

12.

13.

NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended April 30, 2018 — approval by all members.
Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended April 30, 2018 — accept by all members.

Resolution 18-34, 2018 Geothermal Steam Field and Forecast Report — adopt
resolution by all Members approving the 2018 Steam Field Operations and Forecast
Report, dated April 2018, as the Geothermal Operating Protocol, effective July 1, 2018.
This Operating Protocol is to remain in effect until replaced by the Commission.

Fiscal Impact: The 2018-19 approved Geothermal budget covers the proposed action.

Resolution 18-35, Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for fire system maintenance services; Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members —
adopt resolution by all Members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. for fire
system maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years
for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

NCPA Commission Meeting Agenda
May 24, 2018



14.

15.

16.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000
over five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Resolution 18-36, Chemical Waste Management — Three Year Industrial Waste &
Disposal Services Agreement for disposal at Kettleman Hills Landfill Location;
Applicable to the following projects: For use by all NCPA Generation Services
Facilities — adopt resolution by all Members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into an Industrial Waste & Disposal Services Agreement for disposal at
the Kettleman Hills landfill location, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,500,000 over three
years for use at all NCPA Generation Services facilities.

Fiscal Impact: This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of
funds. At the time services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work
consistent with NCPA procurement policies and procedures. NCPA previously had an
enabling agreement with Chemical Waste Management in Arlington, Oregon for hazardous
waste disposal, however, the price for trucking to the Arlington, Oregon landfill is over
three times the cost of trucking to the Kettleman Hills landfill, therefore, making the
Arlington, Oregon landfill less cost efficient. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified
providers as needed. Bids awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase
orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is
required.

Resolution 18-37, ECORP Consulting, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting
Services Agreement for environmental regulatory compliance reporting,
forecasting/modeling and design services; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution
by all Members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement with ECORP Consulting, Inc. for regulatory compliance
advice and complex engineering modeling services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed
$1,000,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are
rendered. Purchase orders referencing the Terms and Conditions of the Agreement will be
issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Resolution 18-38, Fossil Energy Research Corp. — Five Year Multi-Task Professional
Services Agreement for catalyst testing, ammonia grid tuning and engineering
support services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations,
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by Members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services
Agreement with Fossil Energy Research Corp., for catalyst testing, ammonia grid tuning,
and engineering support services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five
years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

NCPA Commission Meeting Agenda
May 24, 2018



Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed
$1,000,000 over five years, to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are
rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be
issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

17. Resolution 18-40, Univar USA, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of
Chemicals; Applicable to the following projects: For use by all NCPA Plant Facilities -
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Agreement for
Purchase of Chemicals, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,500,000 over five years for use at all
NCPA Plant Facilities.

Fiscal Impact: This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of
funds. At the time services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent
with NCPA procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other enabling
agreements for similar services with CellMark and Dow Chemical. NCPA seeks bids from
multiple qualified providers whenever services are needed. Bids are awarded to the lowest
cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services
needed at the time the service is required.

18. Resolution 18-41, Association Management Solutions and KMK Design — Three Year
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreements for Conference and Event Planning and
Management Services; Applicable to NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA and SCPPA
Members — adopt resolution by all Members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreements with Association
Management Solutions and KMK Design and Events for conference and event planning
services to provide needed support for the planning and management of NCPA conferences
and events, as well as for use separately by signatories to the Shared Services Agreement
(NCPA members, SCPPA, and SCPPA members) including any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by NCPA General Counsel. These agreements, with
Association Management Solutions for up to $150,000 a year for three years, and with KMK
Design and Events for up to $50,000 a year for three years, shall not exceed a total of
$600,000 combined including all fees, costs, and expenses.

Fiscal Impact: The total cost of these agreements is not to exceed $600,000 over three
years. The not to exceed limits in the agreements have been established to meet NCPA’s
needs as well as the potential conference and event management needs of the sighatories to
the Shared Services Agreement which include NCPA members, the Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA) and SCPPA members. NCPA expenditures for these
services is limited to the amount authorized for conference/event planning by the NCPA
Commission in the agency’s annual budget. For FY19, $120,000 was allocated for this
purpose, and this amount was offset and made available by reductions in departmental
staffing elsewhere. Under these agreements, $80,000 a year in conference and event
planning services will be available for use by NCPA members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
members, and use of these agreements by these parties will not result in costs to NCPA.

Consent Items pulled for discussion:

NCPA Commission Meeting Agenda
May 24, 2018



CLOSED SESSION (10:30 — 10:45 am)

19. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of
Roseville, and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C.

20. Conference with Labor Negotiators and Public Employee Performance Evaluation —
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: Agency Labor Representatives: NCPA
Executive Committee Members and Human Resources Manager Vicki Cichocki. Pursuant to
California Government Code Section 54957: Performance Evaluation: Unrepresented Public
Employee: General Counsel.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS (10:45-11:00 am)

21. Resolution 18-33, General Counsel Salary Increase; Approval of First Amendment to
Employment Agreement — adopt resolution by all Members approving the First Amendment
to the Employment Agreement with the General Counsel. Additionally, the Executive
Committee requests the Commission authorize the Chair of the Commission to execute the
First Amendment to the Employment Agreement with the General Counsel and approve the
General Counsel's Performance Goals for 2018.

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact to the Executive Services Salaries and Benefits
account, and the cost associated with the General Counsel's compensation change is
covered within the current fiscal year budget.

22. Resolution 18-39, Siemens Energy, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for T3000 maintenance and support services; Applicable to the following
projects: NCPA Lodi Energy Center and Geothermal Facility Locations, City of
Redding and City of Roseville —adopt resolution by all Members authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Siemens Energy, Inc. for T3000 maintenance and support services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $3,500,000 over five years for use at NCPA Lodi Energy Center (LEC) and
Geothermal (GEO) facilities as well as the City of Redding and the City of Roseville.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $3,500,000
over five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT

NCPA Commission Meeting Agenda
May 24, 2018



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

y u,

NNIVERSARY
e

A

Minutes - DRAFT

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: April 26, 2018, NCPA Commission Meeting

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Bob Lingl called the meeting to order at 9:48 am at NCPA’s Roseville Office, 651 Commerce
Drive, Roseville, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in attendance
are shown on the attached attendance list.

2. Approve Minutes of the March 22, 2018, Regular Commission Meeting and the April 18,
2018, Special Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Bonnie Gore to approve the Minutes of

the March 22, 2018, Regular Commission Meeting and the April 18, 2018, Special Commission
Meeting. The motion carried unanimously on a voice vote of those members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chair Lingl asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the
Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3. General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

General Manager Randy Howard reported:

— Gave an update on NCPA’s Support and Shared Services Agreements and provided a copy of
the monthly status report.

- Provided a copy of the job announcement brochure for the position of Assistant General Manager
of Power Management at NCPA. As mentioned at the last meeting, the search process to fill this
position is being managed internally, rather than through an outside firm.

— During the month of May, several Agency employees are participating in the Walk a Mile a Day in
May Challenge. Each day that an employee walks a consecutive mile, the employee will be given
a ticket. At the end of the month, one lucky employee will be awarded a new Fitbit.



— Annual Member Visit Update: NCPA's Assistant General Managers and General Counsel are
meeting with each Member Commissioner and staff as an opportunity to discuss current activities
and potential needs from NCPA. The Management Team’s next meeting is schedule on May 4
with the City of Lompoc.

— Participating in the CAISO EIM Nominating Committee Interview Panel next month to conduct
interviews to fill vacant seats on the CAISO EIM Governing Board.

— The FERC Technical Conference is scheduled the first week of May to discuss local transmission
planning issues within the CAISO. NCPA Assistant General Manager Dave Dockham is planning
to attend the workshop.

4. Executive Committee

Committee Chair Bob Lingl reported that the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee heard reports from the General Manager and General Counsel, discussed
New Hometown Connections membership (item 19 on today’s agenda), and approved the location
for the 2020 NCPA Annual Conference that will be at the Silverado Resort in Napa.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Dave Dockham reported the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 13-18 on today’s Agenda. The
Committee recommended Commission approval of all items. The Committee also heard a report on

the Steam Field Operations Forecast that will be brought to the Commission for approval in May or
June.

6. Finance Committee

Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks reported that the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting. The next Committee meeting is scheduled on May 8.

7. Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting.

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Chair Teresa O’Neill reported the Committee did not meet, but provided an update on
Legislative & Regulatory events and activities. Gave an overview of the NCPA/NWPPA Federal
Policy Conference program that was held in Washington, DC last week. Commission Chair Bob
Lingl thanked NCPA staff for their efforts during the conference and those NCPA Members that
attended. The next Committee meeting is scheduled on May 23 at NCPA’s Roseville office.

9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

Bob Ling, Lompoc, Tikan Singh was named interim Utility Director.

Teresa O'Neill, Santa Clara, read the story line for this month’s 50" Anniversary commemorative pin that
was provided to the Commission. This month’s pin was about the Lodi Energy Center.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
April 26, 2018



CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. No
items were pulled for Discussion/Action.

Motion: A motion was made by Elizabeth Kirkley and seconded by Madeline Deaton to approve the
Consent Calendar consisting of ltems 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, and 18. The motion carried by a
majority of those members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item.
San Francisco BART and Gridley were absent.

10. NCPA'’s Financials for the Months Ended March 31, 2018 — approval by all members.
11. Treasurer’s Report for the Months Ended March 31, 2018 — accept by all members.

12. Sale of Disposal of Surplus Property — note and file by all members for the disposal of 2 portable
air compressors, 1997 Ford F800 boom truck, 2000 Ford E-350 van, 1999 snorkel man left, 1997
Ford Ranger, 1999 Ford Ranger, 2004 Ford E-350 with utility bed, office furniture, 23 iPhones, and 2
black and white copies.

Fiscal Impact: This report has no direct impact to the Agency.

13. Resolution 18-26, Decommission Funding for the Geothermal Facilities — adopt resolution by all
members stating that the collection of funds for the decommissioning of the geothermal facilities be
modified based on the 2016 Decommission Study. The recommendation is to continue the current
funding schedule ($1,578,823 per fiscal year) based on the 2006 estimate through FY 2024. Starting
in FY 2025, decommission funding will increase to a flat rate of $2,417,081 per fiscal year through FY
2058.

Fiscal Impact: Acceptance of this recommendation will increase decommission funding from
$1,578,823 to $2,417,081 (difference of $838,258) each fiscal year starting in FY 2025 and
continuing through FY 2058. Funding has been included in the current fiscal year budget and is
available in the Generation Services, Geothermal account for this purpose. Cost allocation will be
based on project participation percentages.

Port of Oakland, Redding, Shasta Lake, and Truckee Donner abstained.

14. Resolution 18-27, Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for well related services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility
Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. for well related services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members,
by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over
five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland and Truckee Donner abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3

April 26, 2018
!



15. Resolution 18-28, Leidos Engineering, LLC — Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services
Agreement for Engineering Services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility
Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Five Year Multi-Task Professional
Services Agreement with Leidos Engineering, LLC for transmission and distribution design and
engineering services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), and SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At
the time services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other enabling agreements for
similar services with Burns & McDonnell and Power Engineers, Inc. NCPA seeks bids from as
many qualified providers as possible whenever services are needed. Bids are awarded to the
lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the
services needed at the time the service is required.

16. Resolution 18-30, TNG Energy Services — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement
to service wellhead valves and other associated equipment as part of NCPA's preventive
maintenance and continuing operations; Applicable to the following projects: Geysers
Geothermal Facilities only — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager
or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNG Energy Services
for labor, materials and tools to service wellhead valves and other associated equipment as part of
NCPA's preventive maintenance and continuing operations, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $750,000
over five years, for use at the Geysers Geothermal Facilities.

Fiscal Impact: This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At
the time services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other agreements for similar
services with Northern Industrial Construction and Danick Mechanical, Inc. NCPA seeks bids from
as many qualified providers as possible whenever services are needed. Bids are awarded to the
lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the
services needed at the time the service is required.

Port of Oakland and Shasta Lake abstained.

17. Resolution 18-31, TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for general T&M maintenance services; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. for general T&M maintenance services,
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by
NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA"), or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000.00
over five years, to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase
orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
April 26, 2018



18. Resolution 18-32, Approval of Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 — adopt resolution by all
members approving the Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130, and authorize the General Manager of
NCPA to execute Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-
substantive modifications to Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 approved by NCPA’s General
Counsel.

Fiscal Impact: Costs associated with entering into Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 are
estimated to be less than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated according to
Base Resource percentages of the represented members. NCPA'’s administrative costs for
development and administration of the agreement will be allocated to members in accordance with
approved cost allocation methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget.

Port of Oakland, Shasta Lake and Truckee Donner abstained.

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

19. Resolution 18-24, Hometown Connections, Inc. — Become an initial Member of Hometown
Connections, Inc. (HCI), Pay Membership Fee, Appoint NCPA’s Representative and Alternate
Representative, and Provide Financial and Accounting Support Services to HCI — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to make payment for the
buy in amount required to become an initial Member of Hometown Connections, Inc., (HCI). The buy
in amount shall not exceed $265,000, and shall include the following political subdivisions or
governmental instrumentalities, as approved by their governing bodies (collectively “Joint Action
Entities”): Alabama Municipal Electric Authority (AMEA) American Municipal Power, Inc. (AMP Ohio)
MPUA Resource Services Corporation (MPUA RSC) Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)
Vermont Public Power Supply Authority (VPPSA).

NCPA Staff recommends that the Commission designate the following persons to serve as the
Representative and Alternative Representative on the HCI Board of Directors (“Board”) for NCPA,
and that they shall serve until his or her successor is appointed by NCPA or until his or her earlier
death, resignation, inability to serve, removal, or disqualification:

NCPA

Representative: Randy S. Howard, General Manager

Alternative Representative: Monty Hanks, Chief Financial Officer

NCPA Staff recommends that the Commission approve NCPA Staff participation as officers on the
Board, support the Board of Directors election of Randy S. Howard to serve as the Chair of the Board
and Monty Hanks to serve as Chief Financial Officer for a term of two years, and support all duties
and responsibilities thereof.

NCPA Staff also recommends that the Commission authorize the General Manager or his designee
to enter into an agreement to provide financial and accounting support services to HCI with any non-
substantial changes as approved by NCPA General Counsel, which HCI Board of Directors has
approved to not exceed $25,000 one-time set-up fee, an annual audit and tax filing fee of
approximately $17,500, and a monthly fee of approximately $2,750, which shall escalate annually
and increase with increased activity.

Fiscal Impact: Total cost of the initial membership is $265,000. This project was not included in
the current fiscal year budget however funds are available in the General Manager's budget to
fund this project. Cost allocation will be based on 50/50 participation percentages; 50% based on
size allocation and 50% equally shared. No additional budget augmentation is being requested
with this approval.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
April 26, 2018



NCPA General Manager Randy Howard explained that staff was tasked to explore options of
expanding services that NCPA provides to its Members to minimize additional direct cost caused by
increasing staff and PERSs liability at NCPA for those services. The one time buy-in of $265,000
required to become an initial member was explained, as well as the appointment of officers and
representatives to HCI's Board and the agreement with NCPA to provide financial and accounting
support services. Staff mentioned that the agreement for financial and accounting support will not
require the hiring of additional NCPA staff. The Commission discussed the allocation of time for Mr.
Howard and Mr. Hanks, and how often the Board will meet. The Board will meet quarterly at HCI's
headquarters in Denver. Also discussed the responsibility of the other Joint Action Entities, e.g., the
marketing services, training, AMI program, legal services, etc. Each Joint Action Entity will have a
specific role and responsibility unique to their services.

Motion: A motion was made by Ed Shikada and seconded by Mel Grandi to adopt resolution to: 1)
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to make payment for the buy in amount required to
become an initial Member of Hometown Connections, Inc., (HCI). The buy in amount shall not
exceed $265,000, and shall include the following political subdivisions or governmental
instrumentalities, Alabama Municipal Electric Authority (AMEA), American Municipal Power, Inc.
(AMP Ohio), MPUA Resource Services Corporation (MPUA RSC), Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA), and Vermont Public Power Supply Authority (VPPSA) (collectively “Joint Action Entities”); 2)
designate the following persons to serve as the Representative and Alternative Representative on
the HCI Board of Directors (“Board”) for NCPA, and that they shall serve until his or her successor is
appointed by NCPA or until his or her earlier death, resignation, inability to serve, removal, or
disqualification: NCPA Representative Randy S. Howard, General Manager, and NCPA Alternative
Representative Monty Hanks, Chief Financial Officer; 3) approve NCPA Staff participation as officers
on the Board, support the Board of Directors election of Randy S. Howard to serve as the Chair of
the Board and Monty Hanks to serve as Chief Financial Officer for a term of two years, and support
all duties and responsibilities thereof; and 4) authorize the General Manager or his designee to enter
into an agreement to provide financial and accounting support services to HCI with any non-
substantial changes as approved by NCPA General Counsel, which HCI Board of Directors has
approved to not exceed $25,000 one-time set-up fee, an annual audit and tax filing fee of
approximately $17,500, and a monthly fee of approximately $2,750, which shall escalate annually
and increase with increased activity. Motion carried by majority on a roll call vote of those members
present.

San Francisco BART and Gridley were absent.

20. Resolution 18-25, Approval of Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget — adopt resolution by all
members approving the FY 2019 Annual Budget and Working Capital Deposit and Funding
Requirement as outlined in Resolution 18-25 and as detailed in the attached budgetary support and
Annual Budget document.

Fiscal Impact. The Executive Summary section of the budget document contains an analysis of the
overall budget. Total proposed annual budget cost for FY 2019 is approximately $363.5 million, which
represents an increase of 0.35% or a 1.3 million dollar increase over the FY 2018 budget as
summarized in the attached schedule. Allocation of the FY2019 Annual Budget between members
and LEC participants are based on participation levels in NCPA programs and projects and the
approved cost allocations. Final funding allocation for each member is attached to this staff report
and shown on page 137 of the budget document.

The total calculated FY 2019 Working Capital Deposit and Funding Requirements for the Annual
Budget has increased $55,658 or 0.58%. The increase is primarily from higher transmission costs
due to increased generation. The attached schedule shows each participant’s Additional
Requirement Charge or (Refund). The Additional Requirement Charge will be billed on the next ARB
following Commission approval, and Refunds of credit amounts will likewise be deposited into the
applicable participant’s individual GOR account.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 6
April 26, 2018



21.

Assistant General Manager/CFO Monty Hanks gave a presentation on the major changes to the
proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2019. The Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee, the
Facilities Committee and the Lodi Energy Center Project Participants Committee have recommended
approval of their proposed budgets.

Motion: A motion was made by Madeline Deaton and seconded by Bonnie Gore to adopt resolution
approving the Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Agency Budget. The motion carried by a majority on a roll
call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART, Gridley and Port of Oakland were absent.

Resolution 18-29, Siemens Energy, Inc. — Change Order No. 1 to Long Term Maintenance
Program Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: Lodi Energy Center — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to execute Change
Order No. 1 to the Long Term Maintenance Program Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc., with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel for use at the
Lodi Energy Center facility.

Fiscal Impact. This Change Order No. 1 will add $12,720,190 of work to the scope, and will save
the members approximately $990,362.00 per year due to a negotiated reduction in the unit price rate.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave a presentation on Change Order No. 1 to the Long Term
Maintenance Program Agreement with Siemens Energy.

Motion: A motion was made by Teresa O’Neill and seconded by Mel Grandi to adopt resolution
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to execute Change Order No. 1 to the Long Term
Maintenance Program Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc., with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel for use at the Lodi Energy Center
facility. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding and Truckee Donner abstained. San Francisco BART and
Gridley were absent.

INFORMATION ITEMS

22. Hydroelectric Owners / Operator Responsibilities — update and staff presentation.

NCPA Hydro Staff Jake Eymann provided a presentation on NCPA's responsibility as a dam
owner/operator and potential industry implications from the 2017 Department of Water Resources
Oroville Spillway incident.

23. Hydrology Report — update and staff presentation.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave a brief presentation on the hydrology at NCPA’s
hydroelectric project.

CLOSED SESSION

Non-essential Members and staff left the meeting for the closed session discussion.

24. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section

54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville,
and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes

April 26, 2018



RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated no reportable action was taken on
closed session item 24.
NEW BUSINESS

Chair Lingl recognized those that have an April birthday.

ADJOURNMENT

The April 26, 2018, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:30 am.

Respectfully submitted,

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
April 26, 2018



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of April 26, 2018

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

1- ALAMEDA %f( /// /n%/{ﬁ%

2 - BIGGS .h%(v 7{ @

3 - GRIDLEY
4 - HEALDSBURG 1
(,),x,,f/ J
5-LODI A (A,

6 - LOMPOC /jé(/\/

7- PALO ALTO %J

8 - PORT OF OAKLAND M W ,\/

9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

10 - REDDING /% 74 4/’ 7/@;@{{(,_

11 - ROSEVILLE % foerte

12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID

TRANSIT DISTRICT
A ~
13 - SANTA CLARA % M
14 - Shasta Lake 724/;3 /4 éé*’*\

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER W/L //////é’%

16 - UKIAH /% . %W,é




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of April 26, 2018
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Vidhi  Chawla Alameda,
Aipn Kuzor—a| T .
Koo ///J%)/z 6 ~Tecctee Lo LD
TE&L% oW LE Yy HEALDS B L 24,
j;’%ﬂj "Elééam S)ZZ@S v Zc‘, Zz/
Ev&m& i\ﬂ/\\’L B. 795
Mo, Hames, NCPA
lang. Leve bl zielt N PA
Done ACFPA
7{ er) >/9€f -l A ?/4
Qﬁzw/ Cavvtngipne NZAA———
/o / aht Sopsenlle
YY) b oz B EC
Dan Boons @2 ddine
Q\M&M \\omwé NRDC
@:\ (e /] %Mﬂﬁ?
(‘& m&%ﬁ‘s&x% “NCPR-

) N C(\,\W\Ej

N




A.{jcpA CONSENT CALENDAR

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to

determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL
Commission Meeting Date: 4\3\1 \ [%

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # ‘0 to# \QK

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:

# (%i
ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS Lo\ | O&DX\L\MV

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent

Alameda
*

Biggs

BART
b

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland \H o\, e, v

Redding \SH . \%

Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake \7\ LY \%

Truckee Donner \ A VWY L \K

Ukiah

LK K e KK ¥ 1«

Plumas-Sierra

ATTEST: ( 1&&&%

Cary A. Padgett—
Assistant Secretary to the Commission




Topic:

Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE

s 124

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Passed and adopted this 26 day of April 2018, by the above v
7l

VOTE

EARARSRARaNENR}

BOB LINGL

Commission Chair

ATTEST:

ABSTAIN

(

Nt

ABSENT

Py

L S

n roll call.

CARY A. PADGETT

Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: V‘M\L’C\‘ N \%’ ZS/

VOTE ABSTAIN ABSENT

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

TIEErr FrrrrlTir

Passed and adopted this 26'™ day of April 2018, by the above vote_\z\ roll call.

|
e
ATTEST: ]

X

BOB LINGL CARY-A PADGETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



Topic:

Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Rosfhon 4

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

VOTE

FLErr [ rbrerl el T

ABSTAIN ABSENT

X

X

Passed and adopted this 26t day of April 2018, by the above vote on/re)II call.

BOB LINGL

Commission Chair

ATTEST:

(ON

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary



| =

ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636

fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

AGENDA ITEMNO.: 5

Date: May 24, 2018
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: May 2, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



/ sy
7 Mucea

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

A —— —

ANNIVERSARY

Minutes

Date: May 3, 2018

To:

NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: May 2, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

. Call meeting to order & Roll Call — The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Mike

Brozo at 9:04 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference and/or on-
line presentation were Alan Hanger, Sarah Libua, and Debbie Whiteman (Alameda), Mark

‘Sorensen (Biggs), Tikan Singh (Lompoc), Jonathan Abendschien and Jim Stack (Palo Alto),

and, Steve Hance and Kathleen Hughes (Santa Clara). Those attending in person are listed on
the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, Gridley,
Healdsburg, Port of Oakland, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was
established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.

2,

Approve minutes from the April 4, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting — After Committee
review, a slight change was made to the minutes under item 15. A motion was made by
Shannon McCann and seconded by Alan Hanger recommending approval of the April 4, 2018
Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs,
Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

NCPA Geothermal Facility — Steam Field Operations Forecast Report — Staff reviewed the
2018 Steam Field Operations Forecast Report, and was seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval of the 2018 Steam Field Operations Forecast Report dated April 2018,
including approval regarding the market power price at which to curtail the load at the NCPA
Geothermal facilities, as the Geothermal Operating Protocol effective July 1, 2018, and
remaining in effect until replaced by the Commission. A draft Commission Staff Report, with
Resolution were available for review, as well as the 2018 Steam Field Operation and
Generation Forecast report.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval of the 2018 Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report



dated April 2018 as the Geothermal Operating Protocol effective July 1, 2018. This Operating
Protocol is to remain in effect until replaced by the Commission. A vote was taken by roll call:
YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN =
Palo Alto. The motion passed.

4. All Generation Services Facilities — Chemical Waste Management Inc. ISA — Staff provided
background information, and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Chemical Waste Management, Inc. for industrial
waste disposal services, with a not to exceed amount of $1,500,000, for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be
charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report, with
Resolution, and draft agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Shannon McCann
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into an Industrial Waste & Disposal Services Agreement for disposal at the Kettleman Hills
Landfill location, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,500,000 over three years for use at all NCPA
Generation Services facilities. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi,
Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto. The motion passed.

5. All Generation Services Facilities — Univar USA Inc. MTGSA - Staff provided background
information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a Multi-Task
General Services Agreement with Univar USA, Inc. for the purchase of chemicals, with a not to
exceed amount of $1,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. All
purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual
Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report with Resolution, and draft agreement
were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task Agreement For Purchase Of Equipment, Materials and Supplies for the
purchase of various chemicals, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved
by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,500,000 over five years for use at all
NCPA Plant Facilities — Geysers Geothermal, Hydro and Lodi. A vote was taken by roll call:
YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN =
Palo Alto. The motion passed.

6. NCPA Combustion Turbine Facilities — CT2 Outage Update — Staff reviewed the project
outage status for the CT2 unit. During the April outage, the LM5000 underwent a borescope
inspection, the first one since 2011. A critical problem was identified with the stage 4 vane
bumper, which could causing engine failure and needs to be fixed. Other problems were also
identified included oil staining, cracks in the cooling tubes, nut clearance, and corrosion. The
turbine will stay behind while the rest is sent to Bakersfield for repairs. Air New Zealand will
perform service based on bulletin LM5000-IND-0220, replacing the LPC coupling nut, and
changing the material to prevent stress corrosion cracking. The total cost for repairs is $93,000,
with the unit returning to service May 15. Money is in the CT2 account for servicing this unit.

7. NCPA Geothermal and Combustion Turbine Facilities, City of Redding, City of Roseville —
Siemens Energy, Inc. MTGSA - Staff provided background information and was seeking a

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2
May 2, 2018



recommendation for Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Siemens Energy, Inc. for T3000 maintenance and support, with a not to exceed amount of
$3,500,000, for use at NCPA Geothermal and Combustion Turbine facilities, and for use at the
City of Redding and the City of Roseville. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement
will be charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report
with Resolution, and draft agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Alan Hanger
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc. for T3000 maintenance and support
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $3,500,000 over five years for use at NCPA Lodi Energy
Center (LEC) and Geothermal (GEO) facilities as well as the City of Redding and the City of
Roseville. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra,
Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto. The motion passed.

8. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. MTGSA
- Staff provided background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. for fire
system maintenance services, with a not to exceed amount of $500,000, for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase
orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating
Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report with Resolution, and draft agreement were available
for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task Agreement with Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. for fire system maintenance services, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by
NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA"), or by
SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo
Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

9. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Fossil Energy Research
Corporation MTGSA — Staff provided background information and was seeking a
recommendation for Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Fossil Energy Research Corporation for catalyst testing, ammonia grid tuning, and engineering
support services, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders
issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets.
A draft Commission Staff Report with Resolution, and draft agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Fossil Energy Research Corp. for
catalyst testing, ammonia grid tuning, and engineering support services, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA,
its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3
May 2, 2018



10.

1.

12.

13.

Members. YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and
Santa Clara. The motion passed.

All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — ECORP Consuiting, Inc. MTCSA -
Staff provided background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with ECORP Consulting, Inc., for
forecasting/modeling and environmental regulatory compliance assistance, with a not to exceed
amount of $1,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be
charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report with
Resolution, and draft agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jonathan Abendschien
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with ECORP Consulting, Inc. for regulatory
compliance advice and complex engineering modeling services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members. YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and
Santa Clara. The motion passed.

NCPA Solar Project 1 — Informational Update — Staff presented an informational update
regarding the RFP for services to support site selection, screening, and development for
Members participating in NCPA Solar Project 1, as well as a general project update.

Phase 1 of the project has been completed with 8 members showing serious interest. Phase 2
is currently in the works with the agreement approved by the Commission in February 2018.
Execution includes initial site screening, preliminary development, financial engineering, project
development, and solicitation and evaluation of PPA proposals. Burns and McConnell came in
at the lowest cost for all sites across all phases, with scalable pricing that stays the same
throughout the project. Additional costs will be decided for site visits, the geotechnical surveys,
and CEQA filings.

Next steps include a kickoff meeting for committed participants and interested parties May 8,
2018 from 8:30 — 10:00 am. Interested parties will need to sign the Phase 2 Agreement, which
include Phase 2A by May 31, and Phase 2B by June 30. Committed participants can begin
work immediately. The project scope should be crystallized by September 2018, with the
financial engineering beginning in earnest at that time as well.

NCPA Generations Services Plant Updates — Informational — Only — Hydro staff reported
there was a recent storm with extensive thunder and lightning between 2,000 - 5,000 feet in
Tuolumne County. The storm did not affect the NCPA water shed. These type of storms are
very common this time of year, and during the summer months in the Sierras.

Status of Insurance Claims Settlement Payments for Adit 4 and Beaver Creek — Staff
provided an update on the collection of payments for both these insurance claims. The General
Manager has executed the Master Proof of Loss forms for $1,770,036 (gross) for the Beaver
Creek Reservoir Storm Damage Claim and $2,600,000 (gross) for the Adit 4 Landslide Claim to
settle and close both claims at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project. As of this meeting, NCPA has

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

May 2, 2018



received $1m of the $1.2m expected for the Beaver Creek Settlement from 6 out of the 8
underwriters, with two more payments still to come. NCPA has received $1.62 of the $2.1m
expected for the Adit 4 Landslide Settlement with 5 out of the 8 underwriters sending payments.

Three
the ye

14. Plann

more payments are still to come for this claim. The reimbursements will be included in
ar-end settlement process.

ing and Operations Update —

Services Update — Things are going well with Pioneer Community Energy. Staff is
working on longer term procurement. East Bay Community Energy is scheduled to go live
June 1. Efforts are also ramping up for San Jose Clean Energy to go live September 1.
Dave Dockham is currently in Washington, DC attending the FERC Technical Conference
for Order 890.

There should be a settlement for TO18 by June or July. Any refunds that may result from
the settlement will be applied to the TAC subsequent to the settlement.

TO19 is still active, and TO20 will likely be filed in approximately a month.

Interviews are scheduled for Engineer 1l/IV Position May 7.

David Murillo, Regional Director, Mid-Pacific Region, from the Bureau of Reclamation
announced his retirement. NCPA will be active in the new hiring process. Western Area
Power Administration will also be hiring a new Senior VP/Sierra Nevada Regional
Manager.

15. Schedule next meeting date — The next regular Facilities Committee Meeting is scheduled for
June 6, 2018.

ADJOUR

NMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the Committee Chair at 10:43 am.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

May 2, 2018



Northern California Power Agency
May 2, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting

Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
(vl o U VLCPA
r’/,» V66K e PA
:\’-4 L N Y 'aly :" A
/\’\6({336’1 P @ L%a{\

E Vo \)dhﬂ_}Cfl NC Pp\
S\Tf\a\mnon M*C ann Ro;e,u “L
LY //41 Y/ Lodt
f / O, Ay (il NCPA
T/(// ([—f(( C/7L NC{AZ

ﬁ* L fk\\ De€F /(;’O("

'R Yue Nesd
Deuliz ., S %mdaj /( L/ i
/ /21[14 D 72 67Qr
W Cund Et ~\OuDCULC’f/ N PA
Mok o As VA

T 27 wrwnd 48 CPA
ALt D Purtold VLCPA




Northern California Power Agency
May 2, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

ALAMEDA

BART

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LoDI ‘ ) j

LOMPOC ] /

PALO ALTO

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC ') ik Ve,

PORT OF OAKLAND

ROSEVILLE /| _/n e s,

SANTA CLARA

TID

UKIAH




Commission Staff Report

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone  (916) 781-3636

fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6

Date: May 24, 2018
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: May 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693

B\ ,7.“
ANNIVERSARY
& web Www.ncpa.com

Minutes

To: NCPA Finance Committee
From: Trisha Zimmer

Subject: May 8, 2018 Finance Committee M

1. Call Meeting to Order — the meeti y Committee Chair David Hagele
at 10:05am

2. Roll Call -The meeting attendees ei remotely are as follows
Finance Committee representatives: D ), Melissa Price (Lodi), Philip

McAvoy (Roseuville),
Howard, Sondra Ai
Tyler Old, Jack
Representative
established.

PA Staff — Monty Hanks, Randy
sha Zlmme , as well as Mike Berwanger,

, and Marc Bauer (Orrick). Committee

s absent. A quorum of the Committee was

2018 Finance Committee Meeting —
a Price and seconded by David Hagele recommending
8 Finance Committee meeting minutes. A vote was taken

of the Committee.
teleconference locat

ffom the public was present at the site or at any of the

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS

4. Report of Current Financial Market Conditions or Issues
Mike Berwanger provided a presentation on the current financial market conditions. The
Fed continues to raise rates which results in the continued flattening of the yield curve.
Market participants continue to call for an increase in interest rates. The Fed is expected to
take two more actions this year. SIFMA and LIBOR have increased in step with the FOMC
rate hikes. Short term tax-exempt rates have normalized following seasonal tax-time
weakness. Municipal bond issuance was down 3% in April and is down 23% year-to-date




through the end of April. As as result of the increase in short term rates, NCPA Hydro 2008
A&B Bonds have also been resetting higher; however, they continue to trade well versus
benchmarks and have been hedged with interest rate swaps. The refunding of the
Hydroelectric Project 2008 Series C generated approximately $7.8 million in present value
savings, representing over 10% of refunded par.

5. Report on Natural Gas Pre-paid Bond Transactions
Mike Berwanger provided an explanation of the tax-exempt natural gas pre-payments which
are an IRS approved financing tool that allows municipal utilities to achieve gas savings by
using their access to tax exemption to pre-pay for natural gas. The discount on gas prices for
these types of transactions range from $0.25 to $0.50 per
presentation provided a conceptual pre-pay diagram. Gold
twice to discuss this option for the Agency. Staff, however
would not be willing to enter into a long-term transactio
of the PG&E transportation charge.

6. Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP Multi-Task P i ices Agreement

the Agency S standard template that were approve general counsel as well as Baker
ThIS agreement, however, has an
increased not-to-exceed amount of
members, SCPPA and SCPPA me 's services if they so choose.
Provided there are no substantlve ch “Thilly _

seek approval of this ags = lission meeting. There were no
objections or conc S pre
recommendation

NEW BUSINESS
7.

Other Items of Inte

oup that an Updated report on the Agency’s investment portfolios
ance Committee scheduled for August.

May 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 2



td
‘ik,,

it P

——”

Commission Staff Report

May 16, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 24, 2018

SUBJECT: April 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth <~ Q.. METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [J
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah (I
San Francisee o, (Aréa o CityofPaloAlto [ Plumas-SierraREC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara [ Other []

SR: 145:18



April 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)
May 16, 2018

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the May 24, 2018 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is a
summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman'’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited April 2018 financial reports are also
included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

pectful|y submitted,

%\/\

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 145:18



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of April 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,363,026
3,364,610
606,980
515,655
5,899,939
24,835,509

$ 36,585,719




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2018 83%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used

GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,494,961 $ 15,488,100 $ 15,603,994 99% (a)

Debt Service (Net) 3,188,179 31,881,792 38,258,150 83%
Annual Budget Cost 4,683,140 47 369,892 53,862,144 88%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,033,428 20,089,012 27,184,263 74%

Debt Service (Net) 411,312 4113,119 4,935,743 83%
Annual Budget Cost 2,444,740 24,202,131 32,120,006 75%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 311,906 3,744,094 3,198,552 117% (b)
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 71,675 949,290 834,641 114% (c)

Other Plant Cost 129,976 1,814,228 2,095,083 87% (c)

Debt Service (Net) 474,410 4,744,102 5,692,922 83%
Annual Budget Cost 676,061 7,507,620 8,622,646 87%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 332,183 25,703,117 14,877,170 173%  (d)

Other Plant Cost 1,664,973 19,452,326 19,794,554 98% (d)

Debt Service (Net) 2,181,150 21,932,921 26,416,640 83%
Annual Budget Cost 4,178,306 67,088,364 61,088,364 110%
Member Resources - Energy 4,625,036 43,901,074 53,389,034 82%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 272,520 2,898,017 3,457,156 84%
Western Resources 3,309,471 19,123 577 30,119,880 63%
Market Power Purchases 4,309,706 30,384,875 19,318,025 157% (e)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 15,945,929 172,586,239 233,822,294 74%

Net GHG Obligations - 839,320 445917 188%  (f)
40,756,815 419,645,203 499,444,018 84%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 66,836 3,047,421 2,466,609 124%  (g)
Wheeling Access Charge 9,256,728 84,692,642 96,760,295 88% (h)
Ancillary Services 468,895 3,250,526 2,639,380 123% (i)
Other Charges 2,395,906 14,335,103 1,058,438 1354%  (j)
12,188,365 105,325,692 102,924,722 102%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 151,459 1,367,850 1,976,008 69%
Regulatory Representation 86,775 548,111 837,639 65%
Western Representation 40,965 423,001 829,636 51%
Member Services 28,673 310,589 436,078 1%

Judicial Action 32,158 600,156 625,000 96% (k)



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2018 83%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 449,886 4,528,919 5,864,452 77%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 185,814 1,959,575 2,647,017 74%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 24,433 245,771 424174 58%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 65,290 691,232 1,151,828 60%
Green Power Project 190 1,853 17,746 10%
Gas Purchase Program 4,233 50,503 88,131 57%
Market Purchase Project 7,517 75,089 130,141 58%
Energy Risk Management 14,164 150,903 206,836 73%
Settlements 43,614 460,262 774,377 59%
Integrated Systems Support 5,108 71,478 318,562 22%
Participant Pass Through Costs 191,045 990,583 1,525,907 65%
Support Services 147,797 289,863 - N/A
1,479,121 12,765,738 17,853,532 72%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 54,424,301 537,736,633 620,222,272 87%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 5,862,866 96,938,391 70,367,243 138% ()
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 9,751,213 90,565,038 151,018,772 60%
Ancillary Services Sales 518,449 4,925,082 2,731,442 180% (m)
Western Resource Energy Sales 573,068 18,380,587 18,026,100 102% (n)
Other ISO Revenue 1,744,941 14,460,381 - N/A
Transmission Sales 9,198 91,980 110,376 83%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 1,848,211 10,965,517 15,712,788 70%
20,307,946 236,326,976 257,966,721 92%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 34,116,355 $ 301,409,657 § 362,255,551 83%

(a) increase in costs due to unbudgeted outside services related to the dredging of the Beaver Creek reservoir. It is anticipated that costs
will be offset by insurance and FEMA proceeds.

(b) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT1 is at 877% of budgeted MWhs at 4/30/18. Fuel costs, CA ISO
charges, and other variable costs have all increased as a result of increased generation.

(c) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 702% of budgeted MWhs at 4/30/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(d) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. LEC is at 276% of budgeted MWhs at 4/30/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted contracts include Gridley PV, Bart PV, as well as deals
made after the FY18 budget including certain Powerex, Shell, and EDF deals.

(f) Purchases made several months in advance. Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for
the City of Lodi.

(9) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), and (d).

(h) Increase due to overestimated load served at high voltage point and overestimated member generation resulting in additional wheeling
charges.

(i) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), and (d) and corresponding increase in ancillary services sales.

{i) The large budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, neutrality allocations, congestion
offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(k) Variance due to unbudgeted legal costs.
(1) Variance due to higher than anticipated ISO energy sales for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC), CT1, CT2, and Hydro,

(m) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), (d), and (i) and corresponding increase in ancillary services
costs.

(n) Variance due primarily to $1.43 million in unbudgeted displacement revenue.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Participants
- Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Other deposits and prepaids
Peliminary survey and investigation costs

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

April 30,

2018 2017

(in thousands)

21,591 § 45,539
45,759 30,039

2 -

566 251

232 178
9,981 9,688
1,830 343
79,961 86,038
51,594 45,968
180,825 182,145
804 601
233,223 228,714
1,504,088 1,501,569
(968,363) (937,593)
535,725 563,976
215 660
535,940 564,636
230,010 238,789
54

9 -
1,079,143 1,118,231
40,685 49,673
13,506 9,093
54,191 58,766

1,133,334 § 1,176,997




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
April 30,
2018 2017
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 24922 § 22,258
Member advances 1,068 993
Operating reserves 21,171 20,140
Current portion of long-term debt 41,210 39,090
Accrued interest payable 12,312 13,380
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 100,683 95,861
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 64,589 57,774
Operating reserves and other deposits 141,952 141,347
Interest rate swap liability 13,819 16,870
Long-term debt, net 704,524 747,746
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 924,884 963,737
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,025,567 1,059,598
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 71,415 71,775
Pension deferrals 4,460 6,599
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 75,875 78,374
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (66,341) (65,615)
Restricted 64,984 61,727
Unrestricted 33,249 42,913
TOTAL NET POSITION 31,892 39,025

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,133,334 8 1,176,997




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Ten Months Ended April 30,

2018

2017

(in thousands)

305473 § 280,373
166,573 104,859
472,046 385,232
199,959 158,665
62,918 42,900
112,256 84,120
25,812 25,629
16,585 12,597
17,058 16,068
434,588 339,979
37,458 45253
(32,969) (29,511)
4,258 1,044
6,570 12,182
(22,141 (16,285)
(6,234) (10,730)
(11,251) (7,176)
(2,168) 11,062
34,060 27,963
31,892 § 39,025




OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable
Participants
Other

Interest receivable

Inventory and supplies

Prepaid expenses

Due from Agency and other programs*
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Invesiments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Preliminary survey and investigation costs

TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

* Eliminated in Combination

April 30,2018
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital CT Lodi Transmission Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center No. One T ission Services Agency Combined

1 3 - 1 1 3 73 3 - - 63 21,452 § 21,591

- - = - - - - - 45,759 45,759

- « - - . . - - 2 2

- - - 2 - - 487 - 77 566

- - - - - - 45 - 187 232

4,744 1,079 642 1,405 2,111 - - - - 9,981
215 530 37 54 340 - - 18 636 1,830
16,639 12,480 2,298 (1,331) 9,489 - 9.609 11,636 (60,820) -
21,599 14,089 2,978 131 12,013 - 10,141 11,717 7,293 79,961
6,692 7,062 2 - 5,392 - 14,467 - 17,979 51,594
21,563 48,912 5,031 - 34,231 - 14,114 - 56,974 180,825
142 144 11 - 147 - - - 360 804
28,397 56,118 5,044 - 39,770 - 28,581 - 75313 233,223
570,032 394,778 64,843 36,513 423,802 7,736 - 675 5,709 1,504,088
(535,005) (260.665) (47,996) {34.447) (79,118) (7,736) = (392) (3,004) (968,363)
35,027 134,113 16,847 2,066 344,684 - - 283 2,705 535,725
- - - - 137 - & - 78 215
35,027 134,113 16,847 2,066 344,821 - - 283 2,783 535,940
122 139,393 10,918 - 23,198 ] = - 56,379 230,010

- - - - - - - 9 - 9
85,145 343,713 35,787 2,197 419,802 38,722 12,009 141,768 1,079,143
1,830 37,935 920 - - - - - - 40,685

- - - - - - - 13,506 13,506

1,830 37.935 920 - - - - - 13,506 54,191
86975 § 381,648 36,707 2,197 § 419,802 § - 38,722 12,009 155,274 § 1,133,334




OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Member advances
Operating reserves
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability
Operating reserves and other deposits
Interest rate swap liability
Long-term debt, net

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

April 30,2018
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital CcT Lodi Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined

- 3 269 2 8 14 3 375§ 17,853 § - 8 6,409 $ 24,922

791 - - - - - 277 e 1,068

6,213 250 513 288 13,907 - - - 21,171

4,250 22,610 3,995 - 10,355 - - - 41,210

230 5,330 424 - 6,328 - - - 12,312

11,484 28,459 4,934 302 30,965 17,853 277 6,409 100,683

- a = - - - - 64,589 64,589

19,307 16,611 - - 1,716 28,626 384 75,308 141,952

- 13,819 - - - - - - 13,819

24,519 309,158 30,258 - 340,589 - - - 704,524

43,826 339,588 30,258 - 342,305 28.626 384 139.897 924,884

55,310 368,047 35,192 302 373,270 46,479 661 146,306 1,025,567

19,523 4,116 949 2,226 41,152 - 283 3,166 71,415

- = - - - - - 4,460 4,460

19,523 4,116 949 2,226 41,152 - 283 7.626 75,875
(5,361) (33,636) (6,475) - (21,705) - - 836 (66,341)

7973 30,092 4,620 . 22,285 - 9 5 64,984

9,530 13,029 2421 (331) 4,800 (7,757) 11,056 501 33,249

12,142 9,485 566 (331) 5,380 (7,757) 11,065 1.342 31,892

86,975 § 381,648 36,707 § 2197 § 419,802 $ 38,722 § 12,009 §$ 155,274 § 1,133,334




OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
Intercompany (sales) purchases, net*
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

* Eliminated in Combination

For the Ten Months Ended April 30, 2018

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES

Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital CT Lodi Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined

2,093 $ 16,318 § 5250 % 1,019 $ 19,435 3 - $ 244,977 15,925 456 305,473
24321 25431 1,168 2,155 49,051 - 58,238 6,209 - 166,573
26414 41,749 6418 3.174 68,486 - 303,215 22,134 456 472,046
293 2,401 346 333 4,235 - 192,351 - = 199,959
12,561 3212 1,469 1,568 33,704 - 2,898 7,506 - 62,918
274 75) 15) 6 777 - 111,285 4 - 112,256
3,248 3,103 1,839 152 12,177 - - 34 259 25,812
3,880 7,143 442 1,259 3,757 - - 104 - 16,585
4,120 3,641 585 627 3,547 - . 5,749 (1,211) 17,058
(523) 213 51 88 230 - - (59) - -
23,853 24,638 4,717 4,033 58,427 - 306,534 13,338 {952) 434,588
2,561 17,111 1,701 (859) 10,059 - (3.319) 8,796 1,408 37,458
(584) (17,309) (2,412) - (12,664) - - - - (32,969)
617 666 16 - 613 - 638 41 1,667 4,258
20 2,902 1,200 - 2,099 - - 44 305 6.570
53 (13,741) (1,196) - (9,952) - 638 85 1,972 (22,141)
(612) (6.616) (553) - 1,546 249 - - (248) (6,234)
(2,933) (1,066) (151) 428 (2,481) - (1,308) (2,308) (1,432) (11,251)
©31) (4,312) (199) “31) (828) 249 (3,989) 6,573 1,700 (2,168)
13,073 13,797 765 100 6,208 (249) (3,768) 4,492 (358) 34,060
12,142 § 9,485 8 566§ (331) § 5380 $ - 8 (7.757) 11,065 1,342 31,892




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
April 30, 2018

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 567,939

PAST DUE:

1-30 HB Soil Solutions, Inc. Sulfer Sale Feb 2018 76

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 568,014

* Denotes items paid/applied after April 30, 2018.

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific.
NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed.

AR FY 2018.xIsxApr Rpt 2018



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of April 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,363,026
3,364,610
606,980
515,655
5,899,939
24,835,509

$ 36,585,719




7o (32 . 1‘:}\
"k‘é“‘ﬁ-“&':« - J;: I:

ANNIVERSARY §
R 4

Commission Staff Report

May 16, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  May 24, 2018

SUBJECT:

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended April 30, 2018

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworthr-xf;g,)k.ﬁ «METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department:. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X Cityof Lodi [1 City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F’a“"i;‘;;iﬁa]!’r:r::; O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-SierraREC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [1 City of SantaClara [ Other [

SR: 146:18



Treasurer's Report for the Month Ending April 30, 2018
May 16, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash - At month end cash totaled $3,520,147 of which approximately $31,977 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $283,850 to Debt Service and $3,204,320 to Operations
and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $296,271,361 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $292,309,260.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 1.583% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 1.605%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $151,275,000. April maturities totaled $31 million and monthly receipts totaled
$41 million. During the month $40 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90 day T-Bills increased 9 basis points (from 1.76%
to 1.85%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 16 basis points (from 2.09% to 2.25%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of April 30, 2018 are in
compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month's cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

QMA(%H””]

RANDY S: HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 146:18



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

APRIL 30, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

Northern California Power Agency

April 30, 2018
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
$ 1,790,891 $ 92,770,766 $ 94,561,657 31.54%
$ 1,412,559 $ - $ 1,412,559 0.47%
$ 870 $ 4,970,110 $ 4,970,980 1.66%
$ 283,850 $ 45,276,620 $ 45,560,470 15.20%
$ 31,977 _$ 153,253,865 _$ 153,285,842 51.13%
$ 3,520,147 $ 296,271,361 $ 299,791,508 100.00%
$ 292,309,260




NCPA FUNDS
Operating
Special Deposits
Construction
Debt Service
Special & Reserve

Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
April 30, 2018
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/

OPS/CONSTR  (NOTE B) (NOTE A) OPS/CONSTR (NOTE B) FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)

$ 40,551,179 $ 149,653 $ 25455979 $ (20,941,917) $ (29,310,301) $ (15,670,513) $ 334,080

302,817 6 - (9,670,080) - 9,363,946 (3,311)
- 40 966,808 (964,125) (5,688,924) 5,967,056 280,855
- 122,124 4,819,606 - (5,165,523) 239,511 16,718
$ 40,853,996 $ 271,823 $ 31,242,393 $ (31,576,122) $ (40,164,748) $ - $ 627,342

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

April 30,2018
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 29,310,301 $ (25,455,979) $ (297) $ (12,770) $ - $ 3,841,255
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - - 595 - - 595
Debt Service 5,688,924 (966,808) 51,097 (445) - 4,772,768
Special & Reserve 5,165,523 (4,819,606) (9,058) (189,731) - 147,128
$ 40,164,748 $ (31,242,393) $ 42,337 $  (202,946) $ - 8,761,746
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale 160,609
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ 8,922,355

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

April 30, 2018
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 1.583% 1.605%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.593% 1.582%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 1.701% 1.775%
Capital Facilities 1.889% 1.904%
Hydroelectric 1.601% 1.600%
Lodi Energy Center 1.778% 1.524%
INTEREST RATES
1.
- =
KEY INTEREST RATES i e "
PRIOR 178 e
CURRENT _ YEAR 128 1
0.75
Fed Fds (Overnight) 1.70% 0.91% 058 s =)
T-Bills (90da.) 1.85% 0.81% O e dan Feb | Mar  Aor
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.74% 0.81% P
T-Bills (1yr.) 2.25% 1.06%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 1.91% 1.04% - . ser |
T-Notes (3yr.) 2.63% 1.46% ] eries eries? ‘
| .ww-— Series3 O Seriesd




Type

US Government Agencies
Corporate Bonds (MTN)

US Bank Trust Money Market
Commercial Paper

Investment Trusts (LAIF)
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. *
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note
Certificates of Deposit

Total Dollars

Total Percents

Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
April 30,2018
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 15 6-10
Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
- $ 33,701 $2,392 $18,808 $ 5370 $ 128,832 $ - 189,103 63.42%
- - - - - 22,160 - 22,160 7.43%
4 - - - - - - 4 0.00%
14,589 - - - - - - 14,589 4.89%
52,552 - - - - - - 52,552 17.62%
2,303 - - - - - - 2,303 0.77%
- 16,934 33 78 119 283 - 17,447 5.85%
- 10 - - - - - 10 0.00%
69,449 $50,645 $2,425 $18,886 $5,489  $151,275 $0 298,169 100.00%
23.29%  16.99% 0.81% 6.33% 1.84% 50.73%  0.00% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement, Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully
collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



we geiLl 8L0Z/0/S0

£6E'76Y 2.59T 99899/0/€7 589'68Y 8L6Z z6V'L 2T0T/L0/90 0BT V6V 8L0ZWOMO  S29T 000'00S 208N ‘au) JodeQ auioH
S5z 16v 12692 83VAYETL8 ObP'LEY ooL'e Lev'L Z20Z/\0/P0 00T L6V 8LOZ/EOMO  0S6Z 000005 208N spenuawy gL
Svv'zer 2592 LvEsLeYes S2L'/8Y 86LC €8¢l T20eTIZ0  S6TTeY 8LOZWOMO  SLET 000°005 208N “d10D yasosoy
9Gv'98Y 02592 68v490v90 008'v8Y 000 860'L LZ0Z/EO/IS0  S0L'98Y 8LOZ/EO0  0S0T 000'00S 2080 0D UOJIBIN AN 4O Yued
000'260'S 15€92 6ELEDYELE GPLTOB'Y ose't 618 020Z/82//0  000°£60'S 9L02/82/.0  0SEL 000°260'G 208N By [euoneN fesepey
000'860'G 0££92 GErOOSELE E9K'GLO'G 0se’L kS 6L0z/82/0L  000'860'S oL0z/8Zv0  0SEL 000'860'S 208n By feuoyeN feleped
690'vOY'L 18192 7LAODSELE  GE5'8SY'L 69€L oLz 8LOZILZILL  SST'OLY'L vioz/eLEL  S29L 000'zov't 208N BI euoneN |eseped
029'209'% 56592 VGHMZGEELE  §50°209'Y [AX-33 9L 8L0Z/9L/L0  TBE'L09Y 8LOZ/OEMO  08LL 000'629'Y ooan g Ue0T SWOH [elapad]
€9LVE £2002 £ZO0LSAS €9LVE 2000 [’ €9L'vE £L0Z/L0/L0 2000 £9.'vE o08an ojlfeD Jo Jueg uown
168°02'8 22004 ZZ00LSAS [68'0LY'8 6051 ! 168'0L1'8 £L0Z/L0/L0 605} 168'0Lt'8 41 unsaauj foueby |eso
Juno29y Buidouejeg vdoS

omw'es  $ ow'es $ olsL 3 ov'es $ olsh ow'es  § 8beIoAY pue [e30} pund
0Lv'e9 S¥00. GYODLSAS OLF'€9 605'L 3 0lt'€9 £L02Z/L0/0  60S'L ozt'e9 wisenu| Aouaby (€007
190y uondny OHO ddiN

v8L'e6L'L9 112°96£99  § svriL (14 sveL9z'L9 § 6gv’L 86111229 § abesaAy pue jejo) pund
zsr'zey $5592 8ME0/9Y80 GLE'Z8Y 980'€ 61271 £202/5L/IE0  0BE'Z6Y 810Z/LZ/E0 01T 000°00S do8n | RemeyieH auysiog
z8z'ssy 96592 GUEX68E89  G69'S8Y yeL'e 1524 £20Z/GLIC0  0LO'8sY 8L0Z/LTIE0  §T9T 000°005 208n ‘doD 8peI0
960'08Y §669Z 9gvr9/99L OLO‘E8Y 800°€ 619't 2202/50/2L  09L'G8Y 8L0Z/LZ/E0  SSE€T 000'00§ o08n “dioD U0IABUD
oro'zel't 52592 LOOEEBLED 5258801 62€'T L'l ZZ0ZILLISC  996'IZL'L 8LOZ/LORO  00ET lse'eThL 208N -ou] 8iddy
95¢'/8¥ 15592 ZLABYYELL GL2'€8Y v26'2 zor'L 2202/20/50  §00'28Y 8L0Z/IZIED  0STT 000°00§ 208N -ouy oQ1sded
000'202 £0v9T ZEAVOVELE 2S9'GEL 00z'T 99g'L Z20z/9Z/L0  000'20Z LLOZIOE/NO  00ZZ 000'202 208N W UBOT BWoH [E18pad
000°005°€ S8€9T YHAVOVELE S8B'ZVE'S 005t oLzt 1Z0Z/€Z/80  000'00S'E oL0z/ET/LL  00S'L 000°005°€ 208N N UBOT BUIOH [2I9ped
S60'0L9'T SOroT GUSHIEELE PIL'BLGT 029t 8Lt 1202/92/L0  ¥BLLL9T 110z/82/80  02LL 000'209'C 208N UpaID uued [eseped
syz'ssy 85592 §189L0/6Y  058'98Y we'T 990°t LZ0Z/L0/F0  008°/8F 8LOZ/NTIED 000 000°00S 208N “au| jodeq sWoH
000'000'€ ¥9592 91OSOVELE OVE'VB6T 0£5T £90'L 1202/62/€0  000°000°€ 8LOZ/6Z/E0  0EST 000'000° 208N 1N ueO] BWOH fesepad
059°282'2 S5€02 08d8YO0ELE EP'86Y'L Lyl 66 LZ0Z/ELL0  80L'L8L'L 9L0zZ/6LIL0  OOV'L 000'682°L 208N eg UeoT BWoH [esped
111°986' 99voz 9GMLEVOELE ZO0'EL8'Y 06’1 808 0ZOZILLLO  €LE'086'Y £102/82/80 009} 000'526'7 208N ef UBOT BWOH 12
0ZL'e6e'L 1£292 LOQVALELE BEL'9ZE'L ost'L B¢ 6L0Z/0E/S0  0S0'SSP'L GL0Z/60/90  OSL'L 000°0L€"2 208N W UBOT BWOH [esepad
108'629'€ 08292 Ord43€ELE 906°209'C 00e'k 20z 8LOZIBL/LL  8V6'VZ'E gLoziLeiel 06T 000'929'¢ s08n upeiD uued [esepay
000°0L L0€0€ L0S0ESAS  0000L 0500 19 81L02/20/20 0000} 8L0Z/L00 0500 0000k asn ued s
§65'S6Y'S 95002 9S00LSAS 555'66V'S 009°0 L §S5'G6Y'S 2402/v2/80 0090 665'G6F'S asn Mueg sn
688'062'L 05002 0S00/SAS 688'06.'t 1000 L 688'06.'t £LOZ/OE/90  LOOO 688'06L'L asn sueg SN
zi9'1L 1004 VLOOLSAS 2914 2000 L 2i9'L £10Z/L0//0 2000 zi9'bL o08n ojiled Jo yueg uon
sra'leL'yl 00002 0000/SAS Sv8'LEL'YL 605'L L SP8LELYL £102/L0/L0  BOS'L Gv8'LEL'YL 4Vl wysenu| Kouaby (€007
006'€60'6 L0102 LOLOLSAS 006'€60'6 0sT'L L 006'€60'6 vL0z/9ZILL  0ST'L 006'€60'6 asn VN ued sn
anjep bulued #)jusunsaau) diSND  eniep 1oMen PIRIA Rune 2jeq 231d B ajey an[eA PajElS UEBIPOISND  22)SNIL Janssj

mnb3 o) skeg Kumep paseyaind d Jsalaju|
puog
Bunesado
8102/0€/v0

ADNISW H3MOd YINHOSVD NUIHIEON
uodey sJainseasy <n— UZ 7
Kouaby 1omod eluiojijed uiayloN e
| abed ;



61/62/€ 13un ajqejled
Apayenb siqejey
Apayenb siqejjen
Apsyenb ajqeyen

JWTHY 79S9Ti#H Juawlsanul
JINTHY E01ITH# JuaWISaAU|
JWTHY T0voT#H BWISaAU|
JNTHY SBEITH IUBWIISIAUY

8LOZ/OC/F0 O SE [RWINO( 132415 [IEM B3 Wio4) SadLd piq 1o S)

Apauenb sjqejes
Apanenb ajgejed
awndue sjqejje)
awnAue ajqe|e)
awnAue ajqe|ed
awiAue sjqejje)
Apayenb ajqejed
Apsezaenb sjqejedn

we geiL}

VIAND 89€9Z# Juswilsanuj
VINING LSE9Z# JudLUISAAU]
9244 9SE9T#H udUISAAU|
9TH] SSEITH uBWIISAAU]
GTHd PSEITH JuaWIsanu}
9244 SEEITH WdWISAAY|
VNI TEEITH JudWIISAAU]
VIANNG 0€€9Z# Juswisaau}

1S uelpojsny /

810Z/v0/50

1 woug saaud Lo paseq S§ aNjeA BN JuaLIny

"poylaw JoEXa UB 3sn SI830 jje ‘poyrow ajewnxoidde ue asn Ajunjews 03 SYIUOW g UBY] SSB] UM SIUBUWISIAL
-sadA} [fe usamjaq uosuedwos Joj siseq e apiroad o) seak Aep gog e uo paseq umoys si Ajunjery 03 PISIA Juajeainbl puog,

£68°L9v'691 $ ‘er0LL8'99L § z85°L 209 600'5L9'691 651 ysi'cos'eal § :$VLOL NVHO

192'2L6'L  $ see'ezr'es § 989'} 161 269'L50'8L  $ 90L'L 9z8've6yL $ sbesany pue [ejoL pundy
£81'e8y €859 I)EZLELLE 09228 TA> 9L} £Z0Z/LOWO  GEL'EBY 8L0Z/9ZI0  00ST 000'00S 208N INBS [80IEd PAIUN
256'88Y 92592 8ME0L9V80 SLE'/8Y A 6.L'L £TOZISLIE0  0T6'88Y 8L0Z/9ZI0  0SLT 000'00S 208n | Kemeer) aaysyieg
v8e'sgy 18992 048dS007.  0L9't8Y gzze 1SV €202/\2/Z0  0S€'88Y 8L0Z/9ZW0  00LZ 000005 208n ouj Jrexeld
18¢8'28y 61592 SHEX68E89 G69'GRY g6LE 152 £202/SLT0  0S€'L8Y 8L0Z/92I0  S29'T 000°005 208N ‘dioD spoeIQ
18’16 52592 /3VH90Ve0  §90'06Y szee veL'L £202/6Z/L0  06L'L6Y 8L0Z/92Mb0  0G6'T 000005 208N 00 UOIIBIN AN J0 jueg
£vr'06y 12592 85997969 GLL'68Y svse vLLL £202/60/L0  SLY'0BY 8L0Z/9C/H0  0OL'E 000'005 o08an ‘00 2LpB|T [IOUD
zzo'TeYy 8592 90VI9Z8Z6 0LY'L6Y svie 889'L zeoziviieL 00926y 8L02/92/0 008 000005 oo8n Ul BSIA
60€'005 08592 pXOBYYELL OOE'66Y £80°c 8e5't 2202/LLI.0  OLE'00S 8L0Z/9Z/70  0OL'E 000'005 o08n ‘auj 0Disded
gsi'9z9'e 19v9T 6906.EELE  OVO'BLY'S 09L'L 105’k TZOZIOLI90  09G'VEY'E 1102/82/80  S2LT 000'525°€ o08n eg Ue0T BWOH [e1epad
528'020'y 2592 LDOEESZE0  £0°006°C 626 L' TZOZILLIGO  BES'0ZO'Y 8L0Z/LO/E0  00ET Z5v'520'y o08n ‘ou) oiddy
GL6'T6F 28592 83VA9EZL8 OFF'LEY geee Lev'h ZZ02/L0/M0  0S6'Z6Y 8L0Z/9THO  0S6T 000'00S 208n spesuawy L
L1G°16E 81592 LvE8LEYES 08l '06E [Alx4 £8e'} TTOZITLTO  08Y'L6E 8L0ZI9TWO  SLET 000°00% 208n ‘dioD YosoomN
000°29% 2092 ZEAVOPELE 9EE'TSK 0022 99g't ZZ02/92/L0  000°/9¥ LLOZIOENO 0022 000297 208n W UBoT BWoH [eiaps
000'629'0L GEE9T SHADIEELE  L0L'ZBTCH 069t 8zt 1202/20/90  000'629°04 9L02/20/90  069'L 000'629°01 008N upesO uue [elepad
000°00€' 89€92 SMEEDOELE BLT'EST'L 005t AN L202/82/S0  000'00€'t 910Z/0£/80  00S'L 000'00€'t 208N Bl leuoneN |esepa4
000'29L'G zee9e GINEDYELE G6L'186'Y 529k ozt 1202/52/S0  000°Z94'S 9L0Z/52/50  SZ9'L 000'29L'S o08n By [euoneN feiapady
Zov'oLLLL pge9z 08dBVOSLE  £85'88CT'HL Ll 66 120Z/6LL0  OPL'PLL'LL 9LOZ/BLIL0  0OF'L 000'0ZL'LL 208N eg U207 BWOH [2J9pad
Zip'zee'y 95€92 LJINDTEELE 9BO'GEL'Y sov'l 66 LZ0Z/6LL0  GLL'08Z'Y 9L0Z/0z/20  OvFL 0005827 oo8n ¥paID uue fesapa
691'900'G ovesz TAZOOSELE S68'LZ6'Y oyt LS 6L02/9Z/LL  POE'LPO'S SL0Z/8Z/80  0SL'h 000°'Z86'Y 208N By feuorieN |eseped
v8L'56'S 8819z PLADDGELE 158'GS6'S ost'L 01z 8L0Z//Z/LL  102'600'9 vioziezie, 2oL 000°026'S 008N By euoneN [eseps4
0 15002 LS00LSAS O 0000 b o £L0Z/LO/L0 0000 0 asn sueg sn
0 61002 6L00LSAS 0 2000 L o £LOZ/10/L0 2000 0 208N ojifeD o yueg uown
vI€'6/6°L1 2000Z 0000LSAS V.E'6.6'LL 6051 L v.€'626'LL £L0Z/L0/0 605} vI€'616'2L Elal wysenu| fousby (907
aAlesey BupesadQ je1suss

818'922'2z $ 810'786'9Z szl 90v 206'282°22 § 185} 09928228 § abesaAy pue [ejoL pung
086'c8Yy €592 cavaoory. 0L6'8Lp LoLe 865°L 2202/5LI60 S0L'E8Y 8LOZ/VO0  0LET 000005 208N abesols Jand
anjep Buiued # JuawIsaAUj dISND  anfep ke PIRIA Kunyen 2jeq 8aud sjeq Y] anfeA pajels uelpojsny / 33SMIL Janss|

Ainb3 oysheq  Mumen p nd yaind
puog
JUN039Yy Buloduejeg vdoS
8102/0¢/v0

Z obed

uoday s sainseal}
Aouaby Jamod eiuiojijed UIdyLON

AINISY HIMNOE VINEDITIVI NUIHLEON &



weesg:ti 8L0Z/P0/50

oMlesay Bujuoissiwwoseq 099

000005t $ ovr'zev'L  $ oSt 602 000'008'L  $ 0si'k 000005t § abeiany pue [ejo) puny
000'005't Z0e9z OMIBOVELE OVP'ZEY'L oStk 602 8L0Z/gz/LL  000'00S'L oL0Z/9Tie0 0§l 000°005'L a08n W UeoT] SWoH [esspag
0 51004 SLO0ZSAS 0 2000 L 0 €L0Z/10/20 2000 0 208N o}iied J0 >jueg uoin
9AI9S9Y |ejoadg |ewldayloan

18650 § 6sg'soy  § v8g'L 89 slo'voy  $ €651 ooo'zov  $ abesoy pue [ejoL pungj
vSe'Yg 88592 SNA96.ZL6 058'VS 29 85 8102/82/90  TG8'YS 8LOZIOEMO  SYO'L 00055 18sn fnseas] 's'N
§58'S 29592 SWd9B/ZLE €58'SS £69'L 85 8102/82/90  LLL'ES 8l0Z/82/E0  T99'L 000'%5 1asn funsest) ‘s’
098'7S 08592 SWd96/ZL6 098'VS 909t 85 8lL0z/8Z/I90  BOLYS 8L02/L2/20  S/S'L 000°'sS lasn funseall 's'N
v98'sS 11592 SNA96/ZL6  LVB'SS ovs'L 85 8l02/82/90  259'SS 8LOZ/LENO  OLS'L 00095 1asn funsesiL 's'0
8vg'oel z1L592 GINd9B/ZL6 68V'98L Zes'L 85 810z/8Z/90  629'68L 8LOZ/E0/L0  6BYL 000281 lasn AinseaiL 's'n
92IAI8S 19eQ V910Z 099

slo'zer  § 12191 $89°) 09 vog'osk  § vs9'k co0's6r  § sbelany pue jejo) pung
§e9'eZL 19592 TAASSEELE  BEV'ETL WL 29 8L0Z/20/L0  SEV'EZL 8L0Z/8Z/IE0  OLL'L 000'vZL 18sn eg Ue0T] SUIOH [EJPod
W9'szh 2£592 ZAAGSEELE  6EV'ETL €LLL 29 810T/20/L0  LLT'ETH 8L0Z/L2/20 6191 000'%2L 1asn eg UeoT SWOH [e1epa:
€69'2ZL 18592 BSAGBEELE  Z89'ZZL svLL 65 8l0z/62/90  L¥Q'TTL 8L0ZIOEWD  0ZL'L 000'eZL 1asn eg ueoT SWOH |esepad
689'/2) 61592 SNd9BLCLE  159'/ZL ovsL 85 8l02/82/90  §0T'ZZL 8LOZ/LEND  OLGL 000'824 1asn Ainsealt 's'n
921AI9G 142Q VT 102 099

692'¥2ZT  $ vz9'zeeT  § 885l 65 656’5127 § 1551 ooo'oezz  § abeIaAY pue (€301 puns
80€'vEZ 09592 TAAGBEELE  L£6'E€T WLl 29 8L02/20/L0  8T6'EET 8102/82/€0  OLL'L 000662 lasn eg Ueo WOH esapad
02E'VEZ ££592 ZAAGBEELE  L€6'€EZ gLl 29 8l02/20/,0  629'¢ET 8102//2/20 691 000'5€Z 1asn eg UgoT] SUIOH [BJ3pad
sev'vee 60692 TAAGBEELE  L€6'EET osv'k 29 8L0Z/20/L0  9LT'EET LiozigzieL 0T’k 000'5€T 1asn eg U0} SWOH [B18pa]
OvE'ee 98592 6SAGBEELE  8EE'eET svLL 65 8L0Z/62/90  BZE'EET 8L0z/0Em0  0ZL'L 000'vEZ Lasn eg UeoT sUIoH (elepad
82v'veZ 22592 SWA9B/ZLE 8SEVET oSt 85 8l02/92/90  LYS'EET 8LOZ/LE/LO  OLGL 000'5€Z 1gsn AinseasL 's'n
8vr'es0’t 01592 SWA9BLZLE  LLL'ES0'L zes't 85 8l0Z/82/90  95Z'8K0'L 8L0Z/EO/L0  B6Y') 000'950°L 1asn Ainsesi1's'n
90IAI9G }qOQ |eulsyjos

v9s'9s8  § 152988 $ osv'L 134 osv'iee  $ ozv'L 000’888 $ abesaAy pue 3oL pung
v95'088 20592 VLAXGBESIE  1GZ'988 osv'L 84 8L0Z/LL90  OSY'L88 2102/90/7)  02Y'L 000'888 asn eg Ue0] BWOH [e18ped
anfep buiiied # UBUnSAAU dISND  anjeA JayeN PIBIA Runey  aeq 22ud sieq ajey anjep pajels ueipojsnd [ aajsniL Janss)

Ainb3 oyskeq  funen paseyoing yoangd 1saueu]
puog
pung uopdnisuo) Z10zZ 039
8102/0¢/v0

| obed

uoday sJainseal}
fouaby Jomod ejuiogijed udYLUoN

ADNITY B3O YINBOAIYI NUBHIBON

VdON

#



Ausyenb siqejen
Apapenb aiqejen
Asapenb ajqeyen
Apsaysenb ajqeyed

wege:Li 8L0Z/¥0/50

INTHY 09z Juauns3Ay|
VIAING 69€9T# Juswisany|
VINNS €€£9Z# Juswisanu|
JINTHS Z0E9Z# JUBUISAY|

SLOZ/OS/PO 1O SE [eWINOf 1330S [[BM 3U3 Woaj Saoud PIq 10 SJUBLIAJEIS UBIPOISND jaRISL W0y S39Ud UD Paseq Si 3N[EA JHEW JuaLUND

"POYIaL J9EXD UR 3Sh SJ9U30 (& ‘poyjaw ajeuwnxoidde ue asn Ajunjews 0) SYLOW g UBY) SSI UHM SIUBWISIAU]

'sadf} e Jag uosu 1oy siseq e aplacid 0} 1eak Aep 59g € UO paseq umoys si unjely 0} pIaLA Jusfeainb3 puog,
091°9€2'8C  $ ‘785°IP8LT  $ SLL'L 269 o08vy'90z'sz $ LoL'L 9zz'0ze'8T  $ ‘STIVLOL ONVHD

ZLe'zes'L  $ ves'vog'L  § yZ9'L 1601 cov'ISSL S £29'1 000'855°L  $ abeiaay pue [ejo) pund
000°2LG'} £€692 SINEDOELE THO'POY'L G29'L ozL'L 1202/52/50  000'2LG°4 910e/52/50  SZ9'k 000°2L5'} 18sn By (euoyeN [elepay
zio'oy 11592 £€3d96/ZL6 ZYS'OF v65°L 61T 8102/90/2L  €0P'OY 8102/€0/L0  S55L 000'L¥ asn funsess| ‘SN
JUNO0IY YSA vZ102 099

sse'liv'e  § vzr'osv's  $ ost'L z8r 93L'65v'c  § 06l ooo'st’s  $ abesaAy pue [ejoy pund
6.£'505'2 16192 SNAVILELE 9TEELY'T 0£5'L 615 6L0Z/20/0L  6E8'€8F'T §lL02//2/20 QST 000'6L5'Z 1asn I UBOT] BWIOH (e1apad
952'016 8229 19Av3LELE 929'L06 yseL v6¢ 610Z/0E/S0  988'026 SLOZ/Z0/00  OSL'L 000°206 Lasn YN uB0T BWOH [eJopad
02255 9£592 8dd96.2L6 22L'SS 291 [-Vr4 6LOZ/LEND  LPO'SS 8L0zZ//2/c0  €28'L 000'95 asn Ansesil 's'N
190V 9AI9SaY 99]AI9S 1930 03O

192269°2L esyzov'iL 6l £88 szL'069°2L § 8L 922'092°L1 abeiany pue [ejot pung
€06'967 8p59Z SHVHZEBYY 095°L6Y orLe f2 74" £202/90/20  0T8'96¥ 8L0Z/SL/ED 000 000'00$ 208N OT1¥pRI0 WAl
958'0pL 67592 /3vH90r90  860'GEL 62z pEL'L £20Z/62/L0  OL9'OVL 8102/SLIE0 06T 000052 o0an 0D UOJBW AN Jo Yueg
210072 05592 8lM3IzTYYT 0/E'LEL yoL'e zeL't £2021L20  8PL'6EL 8L0Z/5LIE0 008 000'05L 008N 0 feyded auesq uyor
ovg'ovL 2559¢ 859979698 £LG'VEL 06€'e L'l £202/60/L0  S8E'OPL 8L0Z/SLIE0  0OL'E 000°05Z 208n "00 2U39|3 [BIEUSD
191'622 16592 PMOBOVSZ 816'Z2L P00E 6/9'L Z202/L0/ZL  085'8ZL 8L0Z/SLIEG 05T 000062 008N fAuedwo) feusid HEM
122'098 66v9C LDOEEBLED TTS'ES 6z Lp'L 220Z/LLIS0  LLL'098 L10zi6Z/LL  00ET 112'L98 oo8an "out aiddy
000°L6 y0v9zZ ZEAVOPELE €SP'LLE 002 90e'L 2202/92/L0  000°LY6 LLOZIOENO0 0022 000'L¥6 208N WA UBOT SWOH |BIapad
8¥6'GEL £6592 0A3HESEBY  0G9'0EL £0L'e 8LE'L L20z/60/2L  OGY'SEL 8L0Z/GLIE0  0S5°C 000°062 o208n VN jueg ONd
000'005'S 69€9C EMEEDYELE  OEE'COE'S 0054 £2L'L 1202/82/50  000'00S°S 910Z/08/80 0051 000°'005°S 208N BIW [euoneN [elepad
878'25¢€ €00 PE00LSAS 8Z8'Z5¢E 2000 L 828'25¢€ €1L02/L0/20 2000 828'25¢ 008N ojl1eD Jo yueg uotn
181'558'S 22004 LZ00/SAS /81'G58'S 605°L 1 /81°658'S €L0T/L0/L0  60S'L /81'968'S El\val wiseau| Aouaby (2007
anjep Buikued # JuaunsaAul dISND  snieA WdHeN PIBIA Aumep ejeq 22ud ejeq aey anjep pajeis uelpoisny / d3jsnay Jonssy

Anb3 0} sheq A paseyaind d
puog
aAlesay Buluolssiwwosaq 099
8102/0¢/v0
AINIDY H3M04 YINBOIEND zﬁx._mo-w S
podoy s ainseal

Z abed

Aouaby 1amogd eluiojijed LIdYHON

VdSNI,



we op:Li 810Z1v0/50

Apapienb 3jqejed  YIANG 8SE9Z# uaLISAAUL

810Z/0S/P0 1O SE [EWINO[ 193438 [[eM 2U3 wiol) SadLid pig JO SJUAWBJLIS UBIPOISND /83)SNI L W0} saaud uo paseq st ANIEA JDPEN JUaLIND

‘poyIowW JaEX2 U 3SN SIY3O ||e ‘poyrow ajewnxoidde ue asn Anjew 0} SYIUOW 9 UL SSI] UM SjusUSaAU]

sadAy e g uostied 10} Siseq e apJAO. d 0} seak Aep gog e U0 paseq umoys si AJNJely o} PIAJA JudleAInbl puog.,
cop'ieo’s ‘20v'c00's  $ y06°'L (-1 LEp'vzo's  $ 688l 000°'sb0‘s  $ :STVLOL ONVYO
c12'695't § cpoTYst § 622 90EL [£7N YL 0Lz 000895,  $ abesaAy pue fejoL puni
€59 PPL S8G2 zaavalele vee'ler'l ore’e €6e'L 2zozieLLo eV vy’ zLozg/EeLeo Gi€¢T 000'eby’L asn HA UeoT aWOH [esspay
00042 85€9¢ 26S€D9¢8LE €229 0es’L veL'L Lzoe/8elLo 000'12 9102/82/.0 0es’l 000'LL asn Byl [euoneN [esepad
059'9e 1592 £3d96.CL6 985'9E 65’1 [:174 8102/90/cL Lop'ee 8102/€0/L0 1208 000'2¢ asn Ainsealt ‘SN
olLe'olL L¥592 SAd96.ZL6 006'9L JAYAS 1475 8102/€2/80 098'9L 8102/22/20 089} 000°ZL asn Anseall 'S
21959y 9AG 1goQ -ded "den
osLzov'e  $ vorosr's $ veLlL 06 089°Zs¥'s  § 869'L 000'Lt's  $ abesaAy pue [ejol pund
Zye’Lar §8592 VOEVGeEELE GPL'IoY €s8’L 8 81.02/10/80 8L8'Lov 810Z/0E/0 028’ 000'¥9Y lasn eg Ueo sWoH {esapag
268'c9y 65592 VOEVGSELLE SEL'EOP Go8'L 6 8102/10/80 060°€9Y 8102/£2/€0 0LL't 000'99Y 1gsn Bg UBQT SWOH {ejepad
667°S5Y'L [A4%1 4 VOEVGEEELE G68'PSY'L Ll 6 8102/10/80 Lv0'LSP'L 8102/.efe0 orL'L 000°2ov'L 1asn eg UBOT 8WOH [eJepad
156'080'L 12692 pud96/216 68€°080°L £65°4 g8 8102/9¢2/.0 STL'9L0°L 8102/LE/0 6551 000'580°} lasn fnseal) ‘SN
anfep Buifiued dISND  aneA jJaxyen PIRIA Kumep 8jeq 22oud ajeq aey anjeA pajels uelpojsng / adjsniL Janss|
ainb3 0} skeq K P aseyaund PESYoNT]
~puog
ao1Mes 1qeQ senioey deg
8102Z/0€/v0

| obed

uodey sJainseall

KouaBy 1emod eIuI04i[e) UIBYLION

ADINIDY Y3MOJ FINEOSIIYD NUTHIBAN
VdON;
s %

4
J



weec:li 8L0Z/p0/50

UN022Y 8jeqay VZ10Z o4pAH

vor'sL's  $ 091'c99's  $ 129 908 9eL'06L's  $ 108°L 000'592's  $ abeJoAy puE [eJ0L puni
9ZE'9ES'S £YT9T 62533CCIE  9LS'ETV'S 089t 9z8 0Z0Z/70/80  /8L'OYS'S S102/82/80  0SL} 000'825'S asn WpaIQ e [2sepa
909'6€L [R=T=r4 9OENXEELE 6S0'8EL oov's ozy 6L0Z/LOIL0  LO9'TYL 1102/82/0  SLEV 000'GEL asn ed ue0T SWOH [eIeped
60815 15592 GSMEZBZLE 9/5'LS Gv6'L sz 610Z/06/60  08L'LS 8L0z/2/20  SZ9L 00025 asn Anseay 's'n
£96'6% £LY9Z ZaN96.2L6 6V6'SY €81l £z 8L0Z/vZ/50  895'6Y 110262180  6GL'E 00005 asn Anseaiy 's'n
V0L0Z A1SOY 99IA19G 1920 0IpAH

vesovv'zz 8coeer'zz § [ 65 669'99¢'2Z § 8.5t 000'505°2Z  $ abesaay pue jejog pund
792'856'2 £9692 ZAASBEELE PLG'ES6'T WL 29 8102/20/0  0/¥'€S6'C 8102/82/€0  OLLL 000'296'C 18sn eg UeoT] oWoH |e1apa4
v0v'Z96'C L£59Z ZAASSEELE 9S5/S6'T €LY 29 8L0Z/20/0  699'€56'C 810z/Le/c0  089'L 000'126'C 18sn eq UeoT SWOH [B19pad
§G5'€€9'T 68592 BSAGSEELE 9TG'CEQT syl 65 8L0Z/62/90  6ZY'EE9T 8L0Z/OE/KO  0ZLL 000°'4%9'2 1asn g UBOT SWOH [BIopad
121'866'L 51592 SWd96.Z16 2€5'/66') ors'L 85 810Z/82/90  995°066'L 8LOZ/LEND  OISL 000°€00°T 1asn Ainseas) '$'N
981'v68'LL £1592 SWd96.ZL6 0G1'068'LL zesL 8 8107/82/60  §95'GES’LL 8L0Z/E0L0 005} 000'€Z6'4 1 1asn fnsesiL g’
991A19S 1g9Q OIpAH

ops‘eso’y  § sEL'9s0’y  $ 81Z'1 174 606'LOLY  $ 16€L 000'620'Y  § abeJaAy pue [ej0) pund
£62°0rY'Z 00£9Z JOA43CELE 9LO'BLYT 090t 99z 610Z/22/l0  L0S'0SY'T 9102/2020 05Tt 000°2£Y'C asn Wpau uue |esepad
L8v°0es'L 6819T VLAOOGELE 9/£'6ZS'L osv'L oz 8L0Z/LZILL  PYTEES'L viozZLEL  SZ9L 000'625'L asn By [euoheN [BJopad
516'GL ovsee GAd96LZLE 906'Sh ney [ 8102/62/80  898'GL 810z/L2/20 0891 00091 asn Ainseai ‘s'n
168'96 £059C Zrdo6LzLe  L£8'96 sor'L 18 8L02/.0/90  96Z'96 L102Z/L02L  SEV'L 00026 asn Ainseaig "$'n
soi|1oe4 [eniu| oipAH

zoz'sle‘ol  § L08'222'9L § 008t acy sez'zieolL  $ vsy'L oLz'Lve9L § 2beJOAY pue jejoL pung
€L1'96Y 79592 VMEEZ0L60 OEL'06¥ 16T S9L'L £202/L0/€0  020'96% 8LOZ/YLIE0  008C 000005 o08an ‘00 Buteog
710687 559C GHEX68E89 569'G8Y 1Zhe L162°L £202/5LZ0  Ghl'ssy 8L0ZIPLIED  S29T 000'005 o08an ‘dioQ speI0
229'vev 1v592 90v09z826 0LV 16V 150'€ 889°L ZeoTvLEL  OLY'veY 8L0Z/LIED 008 000°005 208N ‘U] BSIA
£81°98% ovs9e savaoory. 0L6'8Ly 150°€ 865'L ZZ0TISLIB0  0L2'G8Y 8LOZWLIED  0L£T 000005 208N ebelols oand
000°02€°S ove9T SHASODOELE  169'222'S oseh 809 6L0Z/0E/CL  000'02E'S 9L0Z/0E/90  0SEL 000'0Z€'S 208N By feuonen [eieped
000°122'e v0£9Z OMIBOVELE 99.'V0Z'E ost'L 602 810z/92/LL  000'LZZ'C 9L02/62/20  QSLL 000'122'€ 208N JN UB0T BWOH [eJapad
000'€66°L 6££92 0BV6OVELE  69E°066'L 0560 65 8L0Z/62/90  000'€66'L 9L0z/62/90 0560 000'€66'L o08n N UBOT SWOH [e13pad
L1z'se L€00L LE00ZSAS 1Z'8€E 2000 L 11z'8e €LOZ/L0/L0 2000 L1z'8e ooan ojlleD 4o ueg uoun
666'V/EY 8200Z 8200/SAS 666'7.LEY 6051 L 666'V.LE'Y €L0Z/L0/0 605 666'VLEY Elval unseauf Aouaby 2007
anjep Buiued #JuaunsaAu| dISND  anieA Jxuep PIRIA Runepy ejeq 23ud °req oy anjep pajels uelpOSN) / 93)SNJL senss|

Ainb3 oisfeq  Aumen paseyaing aseyaing Jsasap
puog
0IpAH aA1asaYy A9 jenden
810Z/0€/10
AJNIDY HIANDS VINHDSIVT NUIHIRON
yodoy s Jainseall <ﬂ— UZ
Kouaby 1emod eluiojijeD uidyuoN R \ \

| abed



we 6¢-Li 8L0Z/v0/50

Apsarenb ajgejied YNNG 65E9Z# 3UBWISIAU|
Apatienb ajqejje)  YIAINA OFE9ZH JudWISaAUL
Apiazienb ajqejjed JNTHS GEEITH JauIsAL|
Apapsenb ajqeie) DWTHY E0E9TH IuatISAAUL
SLOZ/OS/P0  JO SE jewnof 19318 ({ep 2Y) WoJj seod piq Jo s) 1S Uelp 0 f29)snu| woyy sadud uo paseq S| aNjeA JBjER JULNY

‘poyjaw JaeXa Ue 3SN SIAY30 Jje ‘poyaw ajewixoidde ue asn Anjew 0} SYIUOW 9 UL} SSI] UM SUBUNSAAU

‘sadAy e q uosped 10} siseq e apinoid o} Jeak Aep G9¢ B U0 paseq umoys i AJUNEN 0} PIRIA juajeanbz puog,
662'629'sS  $ ‘81Z'v62'sS  $ 009°'L 6l¢ £26'829'sS  $ L09'L oLz'ssL'ss $ :STVLOL ONYHD

ser'iezy  § L09'10z'%  $ ove'e 9zel £sg'99Z'y  $ 15T 000892 $ abeJaay pue |ejo) pund
Lve'226'e 25852 zgavalele 651'698°C 08EZ £6¢'L Z20ZIELL0  ZET'OT6'E ZL0ZI60/Z0  GIET 000'826'S asn JA UBOT BWOH [BJeped
00076 65£9C 16SED9ELE  8ZL'68 oes'L 8Ll 1202/92/40  000'v6 910z/82/0  OES'L 00076 asn By [euonen [eiepa4
£66'SPL 6£592 9XE8ZBZL6 609'FPL 1522 120t L20Z/GLIZ0  T66'SPL 8L0Z//2/0  0S2T 000°S¥} asn fnsealy '§'0
151001 929z 62533ecle  LLL'86 089t 9z8 0Z0Z/¥0/80  62E'00L §L0z/8T/80  0SLL 000'00+ asn Wpai) Wued (es3pad
V¥Sa Z10Z 0IpAH

0 $ 0 $ F— were 0 $ O [ $ abelaay pue |ejol pung
0 19062 L906.LSAS 0 0r00 L 0 €102/L0/0  0V0'0 0 asn ueg sn
93uenssj 0 3509 Z10Z OIPAH

ooo‘00s't  $ ovv'zer's  $ osk’L 602 000'005°L § 0s1L 000‘00s‘t  § abeiany pue [ejo) pund
000°005°} £0£92 OMMBOVELE  ObY'ZBY'L 0sLL 602 8L0z/9Z/LL  000'00S°L 9102/92/20  0SL'L 000'005"t 208N WA UB0T BUIOH [eJepad
0 91002 9LO0LSAS 0O 2000 L s €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 0 208an opiieD Jo yueg uoln
0 £0002 0000LSAS O 1180 ! 0 €L0Z/L0/L0  LLE0 0 41 wisanu| Aousby 12007
on9s0y |e1dads oIpAH

828069  § iep'ols  $ 062’k 96LL le6e'Les  $ S8l 000689  § afelaAy pue [ejo) puni
828'069 ZEv9T EVEEOVELE  LEY'0L9 064} 961’1 1L202/60/180 _ 16£'169 J102/82/v0  Si8°L 000'689 asn I UB0T SWoH [eJopad
anjep 6uiAue) # JUBUSIAUL dISND  anjeA Joxel PIRIA Aunyew ajeq asug ajeq ary anjep pajess uelpojsny / adsmup Janss|

anb3 oyskeq  Kumen paseyaing aseyaingd 1sas9ul
puog
UN099Y 3Ajeqey VZ 10T 0IpAH
8102Z/0E/0

AINIOW BIMOL VINBOIIVD NUIKIBON
uoday sJainseal)] <ﬂ—uz. S/
Kouoby 10MOd BILIOHIED LIBYHON R 4
¢ obed /



wd gg:i

8L0Z/¥0/S0

0/5'6v€ £2592 CINXGBEELE  €05'6VE 205t 0e 8LOZ/LEISO  6LT'SYE 8LOZ/LEND  Wiv'L 000'05€ Lasn eg Ue0 8WOH esspad
189'v5E 80592 94XG8EELE  66G'VSE 9/€'L vz 8102/2/50  0£0'€SE l102/82ZL  0SE'L 000'65€ 18as8n eg ueo" sWoH |eJspa4
56 zL062 ZLOBLSAS 156 0090 3 56 £L0Z/L0/Z0 0090 ¥56 asn isru) yueg S
pund Sa 90102 Z# enss| 931

vec'oesy  § sys'sesy  $ syl 9% Ly'els'y Ssv'L sie’loe’y  $ abesaAY pue [ejol pund
cog'sey 26592 VINXGBEELE OPE'SEY oLL'L 2 8L0Z/L0/0  ZVE'SEV 8102/0E/V0  SB9L 000'6EY lasn eg UROT BWOH [esepad
08e'sey 22592 VINXGBEELE OVE'SEV 6091 1e 8L0Z/L0/90  0ZL'LEY 8L02//20  Ov9'L 000'6EY Lasn eg ueo'] SWOH [e5epad
8.e'leY 29692 SINXSBEELE B8LE'JEY veLL og 8LOZ/LEG0  ZG9'9EV 810Z//2IE0  SOL'L 000'8EY Lasn g U0 BWOH [e1epad
8610y 91592 SNXGSEELE  PLE'OPY 051 o 8L0Z/LE/S0  ZEB'SEY 8LOZILENO SV 000'L¥Y 1gsn eg g0 SWoH [BIepad
ory Y8’ 20592 84XGBEELE 98L'0V8'T 9.1 ve 8102/52/50  91T'8T8'T LL0z/8erL 0SE'L 000't¥8'Z Lasn eg UeoT dWoH [esapsd
Gle L1062 LLOBLSAS GlE 0090 L Gle €L02/10/L0 0090 SLE asn Isnup ueg SN
pund Sa voL0Z Z# anss| 931

900sv's ¢ vio'zve'e  § 865} 6z 695'ce9’e  $ 051 189'2v9'c  $ abeiany pue [ejoL pung
Sv6'sTs 16592 VINXGEEELE LL6'STL oL Le 8L0Z/L0/G0  LLB'SZL 810Z/0Si0  §89'L 000'22L 1asn g ueoT aWoH jesepad
0/6'222 82592 VINXGBEELE ¥16'L2L 699°L e 8L0Z/L0/90  8/8'SZ.L 8102/22/20  Ov9'L 000’622 Lasn eg U0 SWoH [eleps4
196'52. 99592 CINXGSEELE 896'GEL veLL o¢ SLOZ/LE/S0  Z9L'VTL 810Z//2/E0  SOL'L 000°22. 1asn g UE0 SWOH [BI9POS
¥0L'822 81592 CINXGSEELE G96'/TL 2054 V3 810Z/1€/60  9L¥'STL SLOZAENO  SiP'L 000'622 Lasn eg ueo" auWoH |ejepe4
6EE'VEL 90592 8JXGBEELE 69LVEL 8/e) 4 8L02/92/S0  1Z6'08L L102/82RL  0SE'L 000'6EL lasn eg Uo7 8WOH (e1epad
189 #0062 ¥006.SAS 189 0090 L 189 €L0Z/L0/0 0090 189 asn IsruL yueg SN
pung @ 90102 L# anss| 0371

€92'669's  $ 652'869's  $ 'L 9z per'elo's $ [ 106'0L'S  § abeiaAy pue [ejoL pung
2628V 06592 VINXGBEELE €/C/8V oLL'L e 810Z/L0/90  69T'/8Y 8L0Z/0S0  G89'L 000'88% 18sn eg.ueo 8WOH |esspad
60€'98Y 6259¢ YINXGEELE  LZ'e8p 699'L e 810z/L0/90  906'98¥ 8L0z//2rR0  OV9'L 000'68% 18sn eg UB0" SWOH |2Japad
20€'28Y 59592 CINXSSEELE  L0S'/8F veLL oe SLOZ/LESO  86V'98Y 8L02//2/€0  SOL'L 000'88Y 18sn eg ueo aWoH jesspad
TrL269 02592 CIWXGBEELE 60069 z05°L oe 8L0Z/LE/SO  89G'¥69 SLOZLENO VL 000869 1asn eg Ue0 SWOH [esepad
ZI8'8ES'E 50592 84XGBEELE 866'LES'E 98k (4 8102/52/S0  Tre'Tes'e 21021822, 0SE'L 000°ZvS'E Lasn eg Ue0T SWoH [Blopad
106 €006. €006.SAS 106 0090 L L06 €L0Z/LO/0 0090 106 asn isruy dued SN
puniy @ VOLOZ L#enss| 931

§25'22 $ §25'2L $ 605°'L ! §25°2L $ 605l ge5'cL $ abesaAy pue [ejol puni
§zs'zL 9002 9Y00/SAS §25'TL 605'L 8 62522 £L02/L0/0  605'L G262 unseAu| Aousby [eo07
anjep Gufuen #juaunsaau| dISND  enjeA 3axelN PIRIA Aunyew B 20Ud aeq ajey anjep paiels uelpojsn)  a9jsnuL Janss|

bz oyskeq  Aumew paseyaing sseyang  jsasaul
«puog
}92y uondny HHO 031
8102/0£/10

} obed

Hoday sJainseal]

AouoBy Jamod eluloy|es UIdyUoN

AINIDY H3MIS VINEDIITYD NUIHIBON,

VdON
' 4

,v

J



wd gg:)

8L0Z/¥0/S0

166'L76'T 8v29z PVZOOSELE VEY'VZE'T 0zz'L v6Z 6L02/6LIT0  ZPL'886'T SLO0Z/8ZIB0  SI8'L 000'€€6'C o08an BY [euoneN [esapad
966'%L Lv00L LY00LSAS 966'%L 2000 ! 966'7L €L0Z/8LIL0 2000 966'72 208N oyIED JO ueg uoIuN
102°809'L 19002 IVOOLSAS LOL'€09't 6051 L 10.'€09't €LOZ/LO/ZG  60SL 10£'609'L unsenu| Aousby [0
aAs9s9y IN ? O 031

05Z's80°L  § 69b'cL0} [T e e v06'20L'L $ SieY vz9'0s0't  § abesaAy pue jejol punj
16'650°L 95v9T 9OENXEELE LZT'80'L oor'L 9zy 6102/10//0  80.°Z80°L L102/8TIL0  SLEY 000'520'% asn eg Ueo7 QWOH [e1apa
z69've 5£692 8dd96/216 8097 zi8'L s1z 6L0ZILENO  TLS'PT 8L0Z//2iR0  €T8'L 000'sZ asn funsealt s'n
<] €1064 SLOBLSAS 29 0090 ! vZ9 £L02/10//0° 0090 vz9 asn ISt yues SN
Savg ¥Sq 90102 Z# anss| 231

zc6'c92'z  $ 1218127 SP5'L s9L 168'262'  $ &ve'e 96c'e8lT  § abesoAy pue |ej0) pund
$90'922'T §5v9C 8€30LEELE  L/E'08L'T oSl et 0Z0Z/ZLI0  9VL'SST'T 1102/82/110  SIE€ 000'sYL'Z asn g UBOT SWOH (eJepad
Lip'le v£59Z 8dd9B/ZLE YOV'/E zgL siz 6L0Z/LENO  6¥E'LE 8L0z/Lerc0 €281 000'8€ asn finseai) s'N
96¢ 9006. 90062SAS 96€ 009°0 ! %¢ €L02/10/0 0090 96¢ asn 1snuL yueg sn
AsS9Y sqng sgvd 90402 L#SSI 031

1zg'oss's  $ 069'ZZv'e [IvA 962} s8L'esl’s $ 28l 064'569'8  § abesaAy pue (ejo) pung
199'86L'y £9v9Z 6906.EELE  808'886'C 092} 105°L 2202/0L/90  90E'8OL'Y LL02/92/80 STLT 000'001'% asn eg B0 SWOH [21epe4
202191 vSYoz 603VILELE 9652Vl 669'1 6611 12022180 8yo'orl 110282110 STV 000051 asn VN UBOT SWOH |eJepas
00009y 1£€92 1Z8OFEEIE  06L'90Z'Y 659'L ozL't 1202/S2/S0  000'09E'Y 9L02/20/90 099} 000'09€'y asn Wpas) uue [esepe
189'v8 86592 SSMBZezI6 9088 Sr6'L azy 6l0Z/0E/0  L¥O'Y8 8102//220  S2Z9L 00058 asn fnseall 's'N
061 50062 G006/SAS 061 0090 L 064 £102/10/0  009°C 06t asn Isru yued sn
pund ¥Sa 010z L# dnssi 0371

[:TR 4 T 61°8vS S02°1 i gge’ivs $ 119 oo0'sys  § abesaay pue [ejol puni
veL'zeL 6592 VINXGBEELE /ZL'Z8L ol Le 8L0Z/LO/90 92228 8L0Z/OEHO  S89'L 000'€8L 1asn g UBOT BWOH [e18pa
ZvL'zeL €992 VINXGBEELE £Z/'T8L 6991 ie 8102/10/00  SZTZ8H 810Z/82/20 OVl 000'e8L 1asn eg ueo SWOH [esepad
ovL'z8k 69592 CNXSBEELE 0VL'Z8L veLL oe 8L0Z/LE/G0  LEV'ZBL 8L02//2IE0 SOL'L 000'c8L 1asn eg UEOT SWOH [eJeped
pund sa V102 L#onss| 931

L0225 $ 216'25L°b 265'L 6z soL'avl’t  $ 051 ys6'vsL'L  § abesaay pue |ejo) pund
v6v'8re £6692 VLNXGSEESIE 08Y'SPE oLzl e 8L0Z/10/90  Lb'8pE 8LOZIOEWO  S89'L 000'6Y€ 1asn eg Ueo SWOH [eJepes
¥05'05€ 92592 VINXGSESLE  22t'0SE 699'L 1e 8L0Z/10/90  L6V'BYE 8L02//2R0  Ov9'L 000'16€ 1asn &g UBOT BWOH [eJepas
¥05'8ve 89592 SWXSBEELE  VOS'SVE veLL o BLOZ/LE/SO  9Z6'LVE 8LOZ/LZIE0 0L 000'67E 1asn eg Ueo awoH [eJeped
anjep Buiued # Juaunsanu) dISND  onieAIMenN PIRIA Rmen sieq 20ud ) ajey anjeA pajels UeIpoISN) [ 22)SNIL Jonss|

anb3 oy sheq Knyen paseyaingd j2ind ]
Jpuog
pund sa €010 ¢# enss| 031
8102/0€/10

Z obed

yoday sJainseal]

fousby Jamod eluioyjed URYLON

AINIDY YIMOE VINEOITITS NUIHLEON

VdON
/




SLOZ/OS/YO O SE [eLINOf J92AS [1BM Y3 woy seaud pig Jo 1S

wd og:t 810Z/v0/S0

swihue 3jqe||e) D44 LEEIZH JUBWISIAU]
1 woJy sadud uo paseq st aNjeA JEN JuaLND

ti J 99

“poy}at J9BXa Ui Isn SJaL10 |e ‘poyjaw ajewixoidde ue asn AjUnjew o SUIUOW 9 UBY) SSIY LIM SjUBWISAAU|
‘sadj jje usamjaqg uosueduios 1o} siseq e apiaosd 0} 12/ Aep gag € uo paseq umoys s1 Ajunjely 0] PIAIA jusjeainb3 puog,

e6y'cg9'6e  $ 'G06'680'6E  $ 5L oS L16°002'68  $ 8Lt cgz'8v'eE  $ :STVLOL ANVHED
she‘ore'iL  § Lev's90'tL  § 181 3] LeL'06Z°tL $ 675'L 169'9Z2'4L  § abelaAy pue [gjoL pung
000°000°€ LvE9T ZrNEDYELE  056'026'Z 00e'L L6 0Z0Z/0£/90  000°000°€ 9L02/08/90 00Tt 000'000'€ 208N By [euonen (eieped
152 7i9'e orr9z 0Dravoele 06Z'LYS'e 055t 99/ 0202/S0/90 _ TSE'ELO'E ZL0Z/0L/90  OvS'L 000'5L9'¢ asn eg Uo7 SWOH [eiapad
anjen Bujlued # jusunsaaul dISND  anjep Joxdely PIBIA Aamey aeq °2ld ajeq aey anjep pajels uelpoisn)  sajsniL Janss)
anbg 0} sAeq A paseyoing d
Jpuog

¢ abed

8102/0¢/0
uoday sJeinseas)
Aouaby Jomod eluojijed UidyUoN

oMesay N3 0 031

AINIOV B3MO04 YINEDSTIV3 NUIHIBON

VAN



Commission Staff Report

Date: May 16, 2018
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 24, 2018
SUBJECT: 2018 Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

|2

FROM: Ken Speer

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Geothermal

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [ City of Lodi
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc
S P e O CityofPaloAlto [
City of Biggs City of Redding [J
City of Gridley City of Roseville
City of Healdshurg [ City of Santa Clara KX

If other, please specify Turlock

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

X 0O

o o X

X

SR: 148:18



2018 Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report
May 24, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution 18-34 approving the 2018 Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report, dated
April 2018, as the Geothermal Operating Protocol, effective July 1, 2018. This Operating
Protocol is to remain in effect until replaced by the Commission.

BACKGROUND:

The Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report is an in depth study of The Geysers reservoir
relative to the operation of NCPA’s Geothermal facility and provides a generation forecast of the
facility. This report will act as the Operating Protocol with the goal of maximizing the generation

output.

The Operating Protocol currently uses a two-zone strategy with wells on the west side of the
NCPA lease producing to both Plant #1, Units #1 and #2. Wells on the east side of the NCPA
lease produce to Plant #2, Unit #4. This Protocol will maximize generation while allowing for
scheduling flexibility and curtailment under the proper economic conditions. For 2018, these
conditions are:

Day Ahead Market Prices are a minimum of negative $25 per MWhr.
e The level of curtailment will be limited to 45 MW with discretion to adjust this level based
on the steam field response.

Duration of the curtailment is to be a minimum of 4 hours.
Curtailments are limited to once per calendar day.

The Protocol establishes a 2018 annual generation target of 100.3 gross MW.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The 2018-19 approved Geothermal budget covers the proposed action.

SELECTION PROCESS:

Not applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 2, 2018, and was
recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

SR: 148:18



2018 Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report
May 24, 2018
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

AN

RANDY S. MOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e 2018 Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report

SR: 148:18



RESOLUTION 18-34

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE 2018 STEAM FIELD OPERATIONS AND FORECAST REPORT
AS THE 2018 GEOTHERMAL OPERATING PROTOCOL

(reference Staff Report #148:18)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains on behalf of the
project owners a Geothermal Facility near Middletown, CA, consisting of two power plants with containment
areas, and 80 steam production and injection wells connected by roads; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report is an in depth study of The Geysers
reservoir relative to the operation of NCPA’s GEO facility and provides a generation forecast of the facility; and

WHEREAS, this report will act as the Operating Protocol with the goal of maximizing the generation
output. The Operating Protocol currently uses a two-zone strategy. Wells on the west side of the NCPA lease
producing to Plant 1, Units #1 and #2. Wells on the east side of the NCPA lease produce to Plant #2, Unit #4.
This Protocol will maximize generation while allowing for scheduling flexibility and curtailment under the proper
economic conditions; and

WHEREAS, for 2018, the proper economic conditions are:

. Day Ahead Market Prices are a minimum of negative $25 per MWhr.

. The level of curtailment will be limited to 45 MW with discretion to adjust this level based
on the steam field response.

. Duration of the curtailment is to be a minimum of 4 hours.

. Curtailments are limited to once per calendar day.

The Protocol establishes a 2018 annual generation target of 100.3 gross MW, and
WHEREAS, 2018-19 approved budget covers the proposed action; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental
Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts the Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report dated April 2018 as the Geothermal Operating Protocol
effective July 1, 2018, to remain in effect until replaced by the Commission.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:




Vote Abstained

Alameda

Absent

San Francisco BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL

NCPA Resolution 18-34 -2-

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



GEOTHERMAL FACILITIES

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Steam Field Operations
And Forecast Report — April 2018

Hein]ection' ﬂ@ﬁmﬁk 3
Wells

T s D
iy Permeab!e Fteaarvolr of bt
.- Tr;lppeg Stdam :

il

Zones of Intensa Heat

fMagma,




NCPA
Generation Services — Geothermal Facilities

Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report

April 2018
Table of Contents
INTRODUCTION 1
L _STEAM FIELD OPERATIONS 2
A. Overview Of 2017 Production and Injection 2
B. Geothermal Operating Plan 3
C. Water Injection Program 4
D. Geothermal Facility Projects 7
11. 2017 RESERVOIR PERFORMANCE & 2018 GENERATION FORECAST 8
A. Reservoir Pressure Distribution 8
B. Reservoir Pressure and Flowrate Decline 8
C. 2017 Generation Review 9
D. 2018 Generation Forecast 9
SUMMARY 10
List of Figures & Tables
Figures 1-15 11-25
Table 1 - Annual Report of NCPA Injection at The Geysers 2017 26
Table 2 - Geothermal Facilities Summary 27
Table 3 — Reservoir Pressure 28
Table 4 - NCG Concentration 29
Table 5 - 2018 Generation Forecast — 25 Years 30
Table SA -2018 Average Generation Capacity —25 Years 31
Table SB - 2018 Scheduled Qutages — 25 Years 32
Table 6 — 2018 Generation Forecast — 5 Years 33
Table 6A — 2018 Average Generation Capacity — 5 Years 34

Table 7 — 2018 Forecast of Geothermal Production and Injection 35




NCPA
Generation Services Business Unit

Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report

April 2018

Introduction

This report provides an update on the status of the NCPA Geothermal Project. There are two
main sections:

I. A review of steam field operations including annual production and injection
volumes, the Geothermal Operating Plan, water injection program, and projects.

II. A review of 2017 reservoir performance with a generation forecast for 2018.

Analysis of geothermal reservoir during 2017 indicates a continued 1.9% harmonic decline
consistent with prior projections. The average generating capacity for 2017 was 95.1 MW
gross or 88.2 MW net. Gross generation for the year was 833.2 GWhrs with net generation
of 772.4 GWhrs. Generation was lower than expected due to several transmission line
outages mandated by Pacific Gas & Electric during the last quarter of 2017. In addition, the
failure of a 2.4 KV transformer kept Unit #2 off line for the entire month of December 2017.

Water injection continues to be essential in maintaining reservoir pressure and mitigating
steam production decline rates. The Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline project brings an
average of 5,600 gpm of wastewater to The Geysers. NCPA and a nearby power producer
share the water. In 2017, NCPA received 51.1% of the wastewater delivered to the Geysers.
Combined with steam condensate, 2017 water injection rates averaged 3,608 gpm and is a
reduction from the previous year’s rate of 4,836 gpm. The drop in injection rate is due to
NCPA receiving a larger than normal share of wastewater in 2016.

The 2018 generation forecast projects the average generating capacity to be 100.3 MW gross
or 92.2 MW net for the year. NCPA geothermal facilities are forecast to generate 868.3
GWhrs gross or 794.8 GWhrs net in 2018. The estimated 25 year projected gross reserves
are 17,834 GWhrs or 15,899 GWhrs net.

In terms of the fiscal year, the FY 2018 gross generation is estimated to be 846.3 GWhrs with
net generation of 775.7 GWhrs. The respective gross and net generation projected for FY
2019 is 818.4 GWhrs and 748.5 GWhrs.




l. _STEAM FIELD OPERATIONS

In This Section

P Overview of Annual Production and Injection
P Geothermal Operating Plan

P> Water Injection Program

P> Plant and Steam Field Projects

A. Overview of 2017 Production and Injection

NCPA continued to operate the Geothermal Project as a base load facility in 2017. Steam
production for the year was 14.2 Glbs with water injection of 15.8 Glbs for an annual
mass replacement ratio of 111%. Water injection on the NCPA lease is a combination of
steam condensate recovered from the cooling towers and wastewater from the Southeast
Geysers Effluent Pipeline (SEGEP). The water from the SEGEP pipeline is shared
between NCPA and a nearby power producer. While NCPA received 51.1% of the
wastewater in 2017, the average total injection rate for NCPA decreased from 4,836 gpm
in 2016 to 3,608 gpm in 2017. The main reason for the reduction was NCPA had
received a much larger share of wastewater in 2016.

The cumulative mass replacement ratio from plant startup in 1983 through 2017 was
66.2% (Figure 1). The net mass withdrawal of steam from the reservoir (Mass Produced
less Mass Injected) through 2017 is 221.7 billion lbs.

The average generation level for 2017 was 95.1 MW gross or 88.2 MW net. Generation
was lower than forecast due to several transmission line outages mandated by Pacific Gas
& Electric the last quarter of 2017. A 2.4 KV transformer also failed keeping Unit #2 off
line for the entire month of December 2017. In 2018, generation capacity is forecast to
be 100.3 MW gross or 92.2 MW net.

Production Highlights during 2017 include:
P Annual grdss generation level in 2017 was 95.1 MW or 88.2 MW net.

P Average annual mass replacement (i.e., the percentage of steam production replaced by
water injection) was 111% in 2017. The 2017 average injection rate was 3,608 gpm
and is a 25% decrease over the previous year. The decrease was due to NCPA
receiving a higher than normal amount of SEGEP wastewater in 2016.

P In 2018, the average generation capacity is forecast to be 100.3 MW gross or 92.2 MW
net.




Historical NCPA Production and Injection Levels
Figure 2
25.0 - — — — —

16.0
¥ T

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

mSteam Produced W Water Injected

20.0

16-9 17'0 16-6

S

I

15.0

10.0

Steam or Water Mass, Billion Ibs

5.0 —

0.0 -

SN |

B. _Geothermal Operating Plan

The Geothermal Project Operating Agreement requires the NCPA Commission to
establish an Operating Plan and an annual operating level for the Geothermal Units. The
purpose of the plan is to maximize the efficient use of the geothermal resource, protect the
power plants and equipment, and meet all regulatory and permitting requirements.

A Geothermal Operating Plan, effective July 1, 2017, was approved and recommended
by the Coordinated Operating Group (COG), the Generation Services Business Unit, and
the NCPA Commission during the May 25, 2017 meeting. The Plan establishes an
Operating Protocol that maintains a Two Zone operation within the NCPA lease. The
Two Zone Operation was implemented to improve operational response time during a
unit trip at Plant #1 and maximize generation on the NCPA lease while minimizing
reservoir communication with nearby competitor operations.

Under this Protocol, the Geothermal Units have normally operated in a baseload
condition. Steam production from the west side of the lease, Zone 1, is directed to Units
#1 and #2 at Plant #1. Steam production from the east side of the lease, Zone 2, is
directed to Plant #2, Unit #4 (Figure 5).




While the Protocol maximizes generation, it does allow for scheduling flexibility and
reduction of load under the proper economic conditions. The increase in renewable
energy in the electrical market has resulted in economic incentives where daily
curtailment of the Geothermal Units is being considered. It is recommended that the
Operating Protocol allow curtailments to occur under the following conditions.

e Day Ahead Market Prices are a minimum of negative $25 per MWhr.

e The level of curtailment will be limited to 45 MW with discretion to adjust this
level based on the steam field response.

e Duration of the curtailment is to be a minimum of 4 hours.
¢ Curtailments are limited to once per calendar day.

The flexibility to adjust generating loads under these conditions will allow NCPA to take
advantage of economic incentives while protecting the power plant equipment, steam
field infrastructure and reservoir.

Water Injection Program

NCPA continues to operate the steam field in the manner intended to maximize the
recovery of injected water. In order to maximize recovery, it is important to have
sufficient water and distribute it over the widest possible area of the field. It is also
necessary to inject water at the lowest possible rate to maximize the heat transfer between
the reservoir rock and water. Other factors that weigh into water injection strategy are
targeting hotter zones of the field and higher gas concentrations within the reservoir. The
water injection program discusses NCPA’s supplemental water source, the Southeast
Geysers Effluent Pipeline (SEGEP), current injection operations, micro-earthquake
activity and non-condensible gas trends as a result of the injection.

1. Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline (SEGEP)

The Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline (SEGEP) project is a pipeline bringing water to
The Geysers for the purpose of supplementing water injection in the field. During
normal years, NCPA receives an average 2,700 gpm out of 5,600 gpm water that is
delivered. Injection of this water into The Geysers reservoir helps mitigate reservoir
pressure declines and increases steam reserves. Figure 6 shows the historical SEGEP
deliveries for NCPA and the total for the project.

SEGEP deliveries were at normal levels until the Valley Fire occurred in September
2015. The fire damaged several geothermal power plants that are operated by a nearby
independent power producer and they were not able to take their allotted share of
wastewater for several months. NCPA had a 30% higher than normal water injection
from the SEGEP pipeline in 2016 as a result. NCPA’s share of the wastewater has since
returned to normal levels and average wastewater injection rates were 2,533 gpm in 2017
versus 3,774 gpm in 2016.




2. Injection Operations

There were 10 different wells used for injection in 2017. The injection strategy continues
to be an effort to spread water over large geographic area and limit injection rates down
individual wells as much as possible. The 2017 overall injection rate of combined steam
condensate and wastewater was 3,608 gpm. This is a reduction from 2016 when the
overall injection rate was 4,836 gpm.

Figure 7 shows the relative location of the 10 injection wells on the NCPA lease. Five of
these wells, E-8, H-4, Q-1, Q-4, and Q-10 were only connected to the SEGEP pipeline
and therefore received only effluent or wastewater. One well, J-6, is a dedicated
condensate injection well receiving water from Plant #2. The remaining four wells
received a combination of condensate and wastewater. Figure 8 and Table 1 show the
relative amounts and type of water each well received in 2017.

Micro-earthquake Activity

Studies by the United States Geological Survey (USGS) and others have demonstrated
that the steam production and water injection at The Geysers can cause frequent micro
seismic events to occur. As a result, NCPA and the other operators are required to
continuously monitor and report on the earthquakes that occur within The Geysers
geothermal field. Figure 9 is a map showing the locations of the 703 seismic events of
magnitude 1.5 and larger that occurred within The Geysers field during 2017. Seven of
these events had an earthquake magnitude of 3.0 or greater. The largest seismic event
was a magnitude 4.16 on a competitor lease.

On the NCPA lease, there were 66 events of M=1.5 or greater. The largest event was a
magnitude of 2.92. The figure below shows the historical seismic activity for the NCPA
lease from 2005 through 2017. The seismic activity for 2017 was slightly higher than the
activity in 2016.

Historical Seismic Activity on NCPA Lease
Magnitude 1.5 or greater

Number of Earthquakes > 1.5
7 - Y
e o @

(7]
[—]

™~
=)

10

e T T = —y

2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

5



4, Non-condensable Gas (NCG) Trends

Non-Condensable Gas (NCG) is a natural product of the reservoir and may be present in
varying concentrations within the steam that is produced at The Geysers. NCG
production reduces plant efficiency and increases chemical treatment costs, The values
vary significantly based on operating guidelines for the field, plant outages, or injection
strategy. Water injection in areas of high gas concentration generally reduces NCG
production and improves plant efficiency.

Table 4 shows an annual sampling of all the producing wells in the field and the analysis
for NCG’s. These values can vary somewhat based on daily operational changes and the
adjustment of injection strategies within the field, but are considered to be typical
concentrations of NCG’s for these wells. NCG concentrations were slightly down from
the 2016. Figure 10 shows a comparison of the relative changes throughout the field.

Historical Non-Condensable Gas (NCG)
Concentrations on NCPA Lease

4000 - — - S

3500 —3376
3248 3176

3108

3097

300 - ———

2612 2590
2500 - —

™
[
[
-

NCG Concentration, ppmw
8
=

1000 -

500

o |

; : b =
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Year

T ' T

2005




D. Geothermal Facility Projects

Major projects completed in 2017 were:

Plant #1 Yard Repair — A large 40 ft x 100 ft concrete pad was constructed in the
Plant #1 yard to prevent asphalt damage from continued storage of phase separators
and sulfur bins. In addition, a gas cylinder storage shed was constructed and repairs
to existing asphalt in the plant yard were done. The project was completed on March
10, 2017 at a cost of $206,865.

Unit #4 Main Steam Pipeline — A new Unit #4 main steam pipeline was constructed
for the purposes of reducing pressure losses and improving in generation. The
pipeline was put into service on March 30, 2017 and the unit saw the expected 1 MW
gain in generation. The project cost was the budgeted amount of $950,000. With this
project cost and generation benefit, the economics show a three-year payback on
investment with an IRR of 38.5% achieved over a fifteen year life.

In 2018 and 2019, the planned major projects are:

Plant #1 Overhaul — Both Units #1 and #2 at Plant #1 are scheduled for six week
overhauls starting in April 2019. The scope of work will be to pull and inspect the
both turbines, the Unit #2 generator, clean the condensers and Stretford gas processing
equipment, and repair the balance of plant equipment. The Plant #1 overhaul is
budgeted for $2.9 million.

P-Site Well Workovers — The wells P-4 and P-7 have partially collapsed casing that is
inhibiting flow from these wells. The workovers will remove the restriction and
restore full flow from the wells. The P-Site workovers will cost an estimated $6
million.

Plant #1 Ejector Upgrade — Steam ejectors at both Plants #1 and #2 are used to remove
non-condensable gases from the steam condensers. The steam ejectors at Plant #1 are
to be upgraded to operate at a lower pressure and use less steam. The project has been
budgeted for $275,000.

Ball Cleaning System Upgrade — Ball cleaning systems are used to keep scale and
debris from building up in the tubes of the steam condenser. Both ball cleaning
systems at Plant #1 and #2 are over thirty years old and do not operate efficiently.
They will be gradually replaced with more efficient systems. The project is currently
budgeted for $250,000.




II. 2017 RESERVOIR PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In This Section
P Reservoir Pressure Distribution
P> Reservoir Pressure and Flowrate Decline
> 2017 Generation Review
P> 2018 Generation Forecast

Reservoir performance can be affected by a number of factors such as changes in the location
or amount of water injected, the operating pressure of the field, gain or loss of production
wells, or changes in the operation of nearby competitor leases. The effects of these changes
on the reservoir are normally monitored by conducting pressure build-up tests on production

" wells, tracer tests on injection wells, and a continuous review of pressure, temperature, and
flowrate data from the field. This section will discuss recent changes in reservoir pressure
distribution, reservoir pressure decline, and steam field flowrate decline.

A. Reservoir Pressure Distribution

One of the most important parameters in predicting and explaining reservoir performance is
static reservoir pressure. Figure 11 shows areal pressure distributions of static reservoir
pressures for April 2017 and January 2018. In general, wells on the west side of the field
have the lowest reservoir pressures (< 80 psig) and the east side of the field continues to be
the higher pressure area.

B. Reservoir Pressure and Flowrate Decline

Changes in reservoir pressure over time are a function of the mass-replacement ratio. By
injecting steam condensate and supplementing it with run-off fresh water and secondary
treated wastewater from the Southeast Geysers Project, the decline in reservoir pressures has
moderated or slowed with time.

In 2018, 65 wells were shut-in at various times to conduct pressure build-up tests. The tests
revealed that the average wellhead shut-in pressure was 74.7 psig or an average increase in
wellhead pressure of 2.6 psig. This may be a result of reduced injection when wastewater
flows from the SEGEP pipeline were reduced due to drought conditions. The average well
on the NCPA lease flows 25,700 Ib/hr at 44.1 psig.

The projected flowrate decline is shown in Figure 13. In 2017, the overall steam field flow
rate averaged 1,731 klbs/hr. This flow rate is projected to be 1,711 klbs/hr in 2018. The
overall steam field decline is a harmonic 1.9%. Continued and strategic injection of water
over a wide area of the reservoir is expected to enhance recovery and provide better reservoir
pressure support in future years.




C. 2017 Generation Review

Gross generation for the NCPA Geo Facilities in 2017 was 833.2 GWhr with net generation
of 772.4 GWhr. For FY 2018, gross generation is estimated to be 846.3 GWhrs with net
generation of 775.7 GWhrs. The 2017 gross generation level was an average of 95.1 MW
while net generation level averaged 88.2 MW,

D. 2018 Generation Forecast

The updated forecast of future reservoir performance, and the resulting energy generation
forecast for the NCPA geothermal plants, was developed using decline curve analysis.
Included in the forecast are:

1. Operation of the steam field in a two-zone operation.

2. The continued benefits being derived from the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline
Project.

The most recently developed forecast of steam field operations is illustrated in Figure 12. This
graph shows NCPA’s 35 year historical data for both steam production and water injection,
and forecasts of production and injection out to year 2042. With the startup of the Effluent
Pipeline in September 1997, and with its continuous operation projected thereafter, the
average annual mass replacement is approximately 100%. Water injection should continually
exceed production in the future and a gradual decline in the level of steam production will
approach a near-sustainable level of 80% of the mass of water injected.

The total amount of steam capable of being produced by NCPA through year 2042 is
currently estimated at 301.5 billion pounds. Remaining gross generation reserves are
estimated to be 17,834 GWhr with net reserves of 15,899 GWhr. Figures 14 and 15
respectively show the projected net generation capacity and total net generation amount for
2018 through 2042. Table 4 details the annual gross and net generation. A more detailed
monthly five year forecast can be found in Table 5.

In 2018, it is estimated that the Geo Facilities will generate 868.3 GWhrs gross or 794.8
GWhrs net. Respective gross and net generation capacity for the year are projected to be
100.3 MW gross and 92.2 MW net. For, FY 2019, the respective gross and net generation
amounts are projected to be 818.4 GWhrs and 748.5 GWhs.




SUMMARY

Steam Field Operations

The NCPA lease produced 14.24 Glbs steam while injecting 15.78 Glbs of water resulting in
an average mass replacement of 111% for the year.

The average gross generation level for 2017 was 95.1 MW gross while the net generation
level was 88.2 MW net.

The average water injection decreased from 4,836 in 2016 to 3,608 gpm in 2017. The drop
in injection rate was mainly due to NCPA receiving an excessive amount of wastewater in
2016 and a return to more normal level in 2017.

Economic conditions may make it advantageous to periodically curtail the Geothermal Units.
Curtailment of the units is recommended under the following conditions.

e Day Ahead Market Prices are a minimum of negative $25 per MWhr.

¢ The level of curtailment is limited to 45 MW with discretion to adjust this level based on
the steam field response.

e Duration of the curtailment is a minimum of 4 hours.

e Curtailments are limited to once per calendar day.

2017 Reservoir Performance Review

Average shut-in wellhead pressure for the NCPA lease was 74.7 psig. The average well
produces 25.7 kph at 44.1 psig.

The steam field deliverability was 1,731 klbs/hr in 2017. The projected 2018 deliverability is
1,711 klbs/hr. The projected harmonic decline rate going forward is 1.9%.

2017 Generation Review and 2018 Generation Forecast

>

>

Gross generation for 2017 was 833.2 GWhrs with net generation of 772.4 GWhrs. For FY
2018, gross generation is projected to be 846.3 GWhrs with net generation of 775.7 GWhrs.

The generation forecast covers the period from 2018-2042. Recoverable steam reserves are
301.5 billion pounds with the total amount of remaining gross generation estimated at
17,834 GWhr or net generation of 15,899 GWhr.

The gross generation capacity for 2018 is expected to be 100.3 MW or 92.2 MW net.
Gross generation forecast for the year is 868.3 GWhrs or 794.8 GWhr net. For FY 2019,
the respective gross and net generation amounts are 818.4 GWhrs and 748.5 GWhrs,

10



six'gL-¥2-1 ‘sainbl4 uonoafuj @ uononpold [esLolsIH 15

31va
[ [ G [ [ e G [ G G [ [ G
1] ) £ ) o 8 -] 0 2 1Y 2 1Y) 1Y
GO IR R RSN S ) e e ) e s SRR S
- - - - (-3 (-] n0= [=] =] © © © (-]
~ <] [ = © ~ o« = ©w ~ (3] (7}

NOILO3NI

SANNOd NOITNIE S'vey
NOILOJ3ACNI V101

Le-uer

6g-uer

lg-uer

gg-uep

- €g-uep

NOILONAO™d

%2 99 = LNJINIFOV1d3d
SANNOd NOITTIg 2'1ee

SANNOd NOITTIg

TMVHAHLIM SSYIN L3N

AL
NOILONAO¥d V1Ol

NOILOAMNI ANV NOILONAO¥d JALLYINAND
a13IdNVLS VdON
I JENOId

0oL

00

00¢

1]1) 4

00S

009

00L

SANNOd NOI'THg



SiX'8L-rg-| ‘seunbi4 uogoa(u| @ uogoNpoId [eOUO}SIH 4!

paosfuj s93emm peonpoid weais |

L10¢C 910¢ ST0¢C v10c €T0¢ (41174 T10¢

891 0°LT

0T0¢

6’91

- 00

1
Q
n

I
o
=)
L)

0'st

00

o~

Z 2in8i4
S|9Aa1 uodafu] pue uonINPOId YdIN |eI10ISIH

0°s¢

sq| uoljjig ‘sse|Al 1938/ 10 Wedls




siX'glL-2-1 ‘senbi4 uogoslu] @ uoRoONpold |EI10ISIH 4!

. L10C 9T0¢ ST0C ¥10C

| ==

v

ST

S°ST 09T

paaful ;oje\\ W padnpoid weals |

C10C TT0Z 0T0C 600C 800C LOOZ 900C S00T 00C €00C €00C TO0Z 000C

€10¢

.ﬂ. .
ot 9% o1 V9T 2y T
08T
8T g0

€61
0°0¢ 0°0¢ n
1 T°1¢|

Z 94n38i14
S|9Aa7 uoI1323[u] pue uoidNPoId YdIN |ed11031SIH

o
i

n
i

Q
N

Sq| Uoljjig ‘SSeAl 491\ 10 WEed)s




six'gL-gz-1 ‘KioisiH uopessuss Jemod €-6id el

S|neysano pue saSeno Jun 1oy AWFUMOP SpN|IUI S|IA3] UOREISUID,,

ZL0C 9L0C Si0C ¥i0Cc €10C Z10C LLOZ 0L02 6002 800C L0OC 9002 S00C ¥#00C €00C <002 L0OC 000C

09}
sailjide4 099 VdON
S|9A37 UOIJRIBUIL) JOMO [eo1I0}SIH "¢ @inbig

(SMIN SS049) [9A8T] UORIBUDL abeIoAY [enuuy



ws[x'8T-TT-T ‘UCRINPOIJ '3 UOKEIBUDD [EILIOISIH T

Ajjoej 039 e~ ZiueldT T# lue|d N

LT-AON L1-dag LT-I0f LT-Aey LT-1eN L1-uef
- : _ : - 00°ST

- 00°9T

a i

00’8

o
SMmIn/ydy ‘uonezyin weass

00°6T

00°0¢
¢ @an8i4
uonezijiyn weals ssoun L10¢




Sl

STNVHYIAO INVId ONY ¥OLOV4 ALMIGVIVAY ‘GT3LNVALS LNV NI SIONVHO A8 13S 3ONVY LIDNVL TVNNNY  (2)
JONVHO SNOILIONOD Q1314 SY SIVA NOLLVYHINID ATiva (1)

[42]} 0ol Sol IVLOL
(9MN S¥) 1984 ¥ G »a.w.m_ ¥ I
N3dO 3QIM STIam TV
3YNSS3¥d HOIH N‘H
(¥ LINN) V3¥V T INVd 65 8 09 saoy| B I
Q)u._.mw..ﬂ
_J N OMN OMI Salis
[ \_%_‘m n.<m muw_o %m H._W_o am | LINN | INOZ
EN NIA XVI
IVNNNY AVa Ava
4% 3LIS-Y
I-1NVd \L_‘ 832 0 mv
N3dO 3aM STIAM TV
3YNSSId
3ALVIGINYILNI-MO
(z®L SLINN) V3NV | INV1d
\ln},,
V m 3LIS-4
\\\lljfllnul\\.lL/l\
/.,
/
1 31IS-H
3 PHWIU?\ \l( l(l\}/(..
NOANVD dv34 ST 1INN €1 L1INN 81 1INN

8107 NV'1d TVNOLLVYAJdO TVINIAHLOIAD °S 2Insig




xsx"AIaAI2Q d3D3S 1BILIOISIH - 9 BnSi4 91

AanpavdONm  Asaalad d3D3S |eloL m

09¢
| 744

L10C 910¢ STIOC PIOC €TOC <CIOC TTOC OTOC 600C 800C LOOZ 900C SO00CZ P00C €00C <€00T TOOZ 0007

65T

L16C

_
_
1

L

(f
WIS . e g

9€0°s 906t

S6v's 8ES'S  LPS'S

Ll

000t

- 000C

- 000°€

000y

wds ‘ajeamol4

T

000°s

0009

4

veo'g Y09 £80°9

TS8'S

AJaniap d393S JO %S9 104 SJUNOIIE J3)eMySal4

000°L

(N dD 28esdAy jenuuy)

VdON pue [e101 s3LI9AI[2Q d393S O A101SIH "9 3un314




L)
1334 NI 39S dvH
(h8) owon o ™M worer 3erws3 [6°d | T
000z oooL ]
(A0) 3AIA o3u00 B llom uonosful | [~ |
wayshs suledid Juenyyl siesheg 3§ = \Hr
waysAs oaujodig SIDSUBPUDY  mwmmmmmmmmmrmemems HLYON
waysAs auledid/uoRos|io) JOIDM UIRY e
sweysAg sujjedid/uoi}os|iod
@[ 9
8-d
2
STUN S N &5
SLL AYMHOM
ONUIISUIALNI
‘GIVMLSYI .
SINNLNCD >
I L
ANEME

H

0 0

0S6—VD PUD 6¥6—VO $95097 W1E

rH
— yout T g
iike

auidipn o) 1

o

NOLLDHCNI HO NV'Id QHAIAIAON L HIQOIA




81

e ———p——
1334 oooe 6002 000t 0 \
F I I T T 3

NOILVOOT TTdMm ®
NOILLONAO¥d WVALS

JTIK S0 0 |
TTdM NOILOHINI
- J \ Y4LVA LNAENTIIT ANV

ALYSNAANOD TIXIN

TTEM NOLLDAINI
INAINTIIT

TTaM NOLLDAINI
HILVSNIANOD

ANAOTT /

/
W

L~Y

1-D
v

3NIdIVO

STYALVA dALOHACNI AO NOLLNITIILSIA JALLVTHA

3 =3

? nom ,

LT0T ONIINA

dTHIH WVALS VdON
8 HANOIA

o

r—H

| INIITVD ,//




0L°2cl

VIV

AdNLs JINSIFS
SHISAIO

18vd _..C.Dow

GL ¢l

08¢cl

6 21nbi4

S9llN-C

+ juswngsu] |

uonop buons

sbuudg uosiepuy wouy
ale saouelsip jelpey

SITUN N 1 o

SUORED0T JuBld JOoMod

BuneladO-uopN o
Bunesadp ®

dVIN 1314 SH3ISATO

SOlIIN-G

SL°8¢

Aippunog plei4

: A 2)}puwiixouddy
. gg'c¢cl

/, |
0
]2

Jeyealb 9 0'c epnuubeyy @
6°Z 01 G'L @pnjubep .

(Bojeyed Asiediieqg O N woy)
SOSN IHL A9 A3 L0
SLIN3IAZ DINSITS

210¢C VA

06°¢ccl

\

] 08'8¢
SS|IN-0L

S

s \ N

1NN

/

G8'¢ccl -

/Ir!rf\\\\\\.\l\\\

S8'8¢

)
/7
\om.mm_




FIGURE 10
NONCONDENSABLE GAS CONCENTRATIONS
IN NCPA STEAM (ppm)

|
\ CALPINE CALPINE
\ ol R
\\ \ = d ® /23.
Qﬁ &’ f
\\ N ¢ /) \
&
/0 & : / ’6
N NP
November 2017 : ( y /“

\

/;;[ CALPINE

D%
A
\\ N

October 2016
4 /
\ "o,ve \ ~ rd
I —
LEGEND
Sﬁy CONCENTRATION
INJECTION WELL LEVEL
" € 2,000 ppm or less

2,001 to 4,000 ppm
4,001 ppm or more

20




FIGURE 11
NCPA STEAM FIELD RESERVOIR PRESSURE

| CALPINE CALPINE
N\ |

D F

January 2018

/_\T\-‘ CALPINE

APRIL 2017

N

LEGEND

STEAM WELL RESERVOIR PRESSURE
ISOBARIC CONTOUR AREA LOCATION (PSIG)

LOW <80

MEDIUM LOW e 80 - 100
120 MEDIUM HIGH e 101 - 120

HIGH ° >120

120

2l




SiX'g}-pZ-} 'seInbi uoyosfu] ' uoKONpPOId (EOLOISIH

[44

uondI[uy I9)BAA 29 UOTIINPOLJ WIBI)S ISEIAI0] PUR [EILIO)SIH

uonINfuf JI9)ep <= UODINPOIJ WEI)S e
~ aBag
114114 0€0T 0207 010C 0007 0661 0861
1 ! 1 1 1 I L Q
S
sq[ uolg 7'6S€ Sq[ uolfiig S'v<y
uondafuy anyng LI0T - €861
uond3fug
01
S
s 174
Sq| uoiii'g S°'10€ Sq[ oty T°959
uoydnpo.ld damnyg L10T - €861
10 STAYASTA uoyInpoIg
4 0¢
1 2131y

sq Jo suoryig ‘uondafuy 10 uononpoag




€c

3jeIMO]4 palIafoid——  3}eIMO|{ 2SRIDAY |RILIOISIH ==~

0r0c S€0C (173174 S¢0¢C 17414 S10¢C 010¢ S00¢ 000¢ 5661

L ] 1 i ! 1 c
00S
000T
| g
—en 00S‘T M.
| 2
(]
5
000‘c =
%6°T = 91ey aulpPaqg dluowieH
00SC
153 Ydj TTLT = Mo|4 wea)s "SAY STOT JA |
ydy TEL'T = Mo|4 wes “SAY LTOT JA |
- 000°€
€T 34n314
T# 8 T#1ue|d VdON

paulquio) saleamo|4 Weals pajdafoid pue |ed10sIH




ve

uoneIaudn ‘Say pajdafold STOZ —— UO1EI3UDD) "SAY [EILIOISIH ~o—

L

474114 S€0¢ 0€0¢ LT4114 ocoe S10¢ 010¢ S00¢

1 1

000¢

0

0c¢

SIMD 868°ST - SONI9SDY 19N 20T - STOT
JYMD v°CZLL - uoljeiduan 9N LTOZ

Qo
<

(=]
O

o
00

o
o
Lo |
MW ‘ uojjesauan JaN *Say

MIN £'T6 - UoieIaUID 13N "SAY 8T0T
MIN Z°88 - uollesauan "Say 319N LI02

(174}

T 24n3i4

C# '3 T# siue|d VdIN paulquo)
|[9A37 UOI1RIDUDY) I3\ dSeIaAY Pa1Ia[0id pue [edLI0lSIH

091




gc

uonesauan 3N parefold 8107 —— UOIIRIBUIL) JON [EILIOISIH ~o—
0v0e 5€0¢ 0£0¢ 5202 0202 ST0Z 010z $00¢ 0002
L i | I 1 i 1 1 o
002
oot
/f\/.i\/f\ 009
008
IYMD S°SPL - UOIIRISUID) 13N 6TOT Ad
JYMD £°SLL - UOREIBUID) 19N STOZ Ad
- 000°T
JYMD 668°ST - SONI9SIY 19N ZOTZ- LTOZ JA |
JYMD 8'V6L - UOIIRISUID) 3N STOZ JA
- 0021
IYMD b"ZLL - UOIRIBUBD 13N [ENIDY £TOZ JA
JYMD §°96L - UOIIRIDUID) JDN PaIIIPaLd LT0Z JA
00v'T

GT 2in8i4

C# 8 1# siue|d VdON pauiquio)
uoijelaudn 19N paidafoid pue |e31103SIH

SIYMd ‘Uojjesauan 19N




| | i ' “(uoibay 15800 WON) AlUNo) BuIOUOS U 3Je SIaY0 01 8y} ‘(UoiBaY A3jEA [EAURD) AAUNOD ST Ul PaIedo] Bl SIJfE) Ui SSUIEU [[oM PIoE 6 UL Z
L | I ‘ |_seiemelsem pajeas S)E0 Sepes|d pue NYSOOVT Wi Jaiabo) aYer Jeald Loy JS1eMm 2. SaWNOA (SUiSdid) Jueniy3,, L | ‘SSION!
| _ 1 I I
—ln : | | _ _ i _ i
! o %EP] "NET JB3|) WOL) UMBIPUIW JSJEM USRI SEM 1B J31eM auijadid UN(T JO % 9U) UOW yoes Buung |
_ _ . ]
681'968'L | LLE'BEE'Y | 878758 . OLO'piL  Le’lel [SSL'Sll  €96'CEL 216’86 | 0Z0'6ZL | 220691 | 690821 | SOM'SLL | 9Zv'i8) | 906'lST | 262 €9 | | SiEjoL
1e30L| {zhueny3s| (1)eyesuapuon - B | ;
8ZZ'eY 82z ey - - 6¥0 | Zz0'0L | O¥6 €821 | se2zL opy'L  |eelT i - = - _ wonwa| oA
960l | = - - - - - - 68L'y | Zv6'L | 0s9Z¢  2oe'®e | €99y | wenyz| |
960k, 0 - - - - - - - i s - p- - | | =esuopuod; oi-d
| L w o ! - I I _ P
- : | 1 i NG ST i R - - 1= T wenwy o]
] o ! - ,
#10°08 vio'os | R 1 - - ) [ - - - 9667 1ez'6L | 9/5'6L | 266'4L | 61202 wend| 70|
| I o |
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - weny3| £d
I _ T p— . N
ozv'sl | ozv'sil | - - {es'y  |coc's - EV6'S | OLL'LZ | 812’9l | 992'9L | G16'EL  9lZvL | 009'Ph -.—I. wenya -Di
T e —— == w L]
- - A R A RS T - : : - = | = - | wenwal ed
- - B - =k - - - | 2 S - | - B wenwa d| |
B 9s9'8ze - 00L'LZ | 6005z | vi2'9Z | 6EC4Z  6LYLZ | 9lZ¥Z | izeee | 18922 | Ellbe | ve0'6 | eiv'pe | 9size | | juenyg il
89z'62y €65'001 S09'y 86221 | LSl'9 Sy £zl - sge'e zio'L 0z'eL | 8yb'e €00'6Z | 925'8C |  ®esudpUOD| LN
{ =l ] - -
i J i - R - - - R - - uSn3
- - ) S - 1 - - - - - - - - - | owesuspuod PN
098 ﬁ 098 - Po- - - - o= - gsoe - s Iz m%.- | elesuspuod| gt
995°0le | 995°DLE - 8yv'8c  L9Z'cz  ¥IZVZ | L6292 [ OvS¥Z  [eZlz 6Ll 2890z |zeszc | 062SC  SOL'Le  LvlOS ! weny3:  yH| |
— ] - _ . -~ T | {
0 - - = - - - - - - - - - - 1 wenwa'  L-H
i E— i — -
62875 08s’'e  [v9g'T  I¥9'L | ssv’e  @8L'9 9626 ci¥'6 08’V  9sv'z | 2elLv | 6eev | 8LLC ; weny3 ,
| 1v1'862 sLi'vbe | [eov'bl [€66'lz | 160'9  g8s'0L | Jel'6 | 08SEL L9 | €26'9C 92808 | evliZ | 8CLLE | 825'[¢ Sjesuspuod| v |
- : -~ - - | = ; - - - - - - - weny3| |
L R - - C - - - - = - : - sjesuspuod| |4
|
les'sez [ 166 | 6o€'6L  1810'8L | S€l'®L | 95/lz | 99z'9L | 80L'0Z | v6@0Z | 6959l | £86'8L  909'LZ €608 | ¥ESTZ weny3| g3
- - ] - I - - I - ) - R
- N - - - - - - - - < - - - | ewsuspuog| 11-0i
- I - - ] - ] I
- - | - RO - [ (S S-S ) = = - — 1 - 11 Vews 9] |
r - 1= - S — 1 - i - - - - wenw3 99
! b S . i - |
i _0segs vSl'L [ 600'C | 6vi'8 L€' 860'® | ZvE¥ | 98¢l | bl'L 2891 1667 | z96'T | se9'l | usny3
6s9'292 | i60e2ie gle'ol . elv'9e | vae'9l | pLL'ZL  109'LL | 048'9 ze'tl 1e5'cl | S66'0C | 1/6'0L [ 968'GZ | ¥6C6C | | =lesuspucd| v |
. = S— I = N D A
[ R T ) o L 1IPM,
€101 | LjUonWR  (,eSUSPUOD 199G | LKAON | 2100 | 2108S | BNV | Lir | iunr | Zi-kem | Zi-idy l-ieW  z)-68d | Z-uer
_em _ 1 _ _ _ _ il | |
| (suoleD 0001 1) L10Z 4834 40}
, a13id WYILS SHISAIO IHL LV NOLLOIMNI VdON H0 1043 TVNNNY °L @[qel
| T T 7 T I I 1 T

uondalu| £102




LZ

SALLMIOVL TYINY3IHLO039 Z31avl

mwdd
80L'E 9.¢8'¢ 9/l 690'¢ 8YZ'e /60°¢ 0S6'Z cg/'z S6E'Z 602'Z UonERUsadU0) HON il
JusAg opnpubeRy ]
262 I8¢ 66'C ey YA 16'¢ X3 66'C 9 16T wnunxe Apagoy |
MWiSIas-0INN VdJIN
99 9 0s 85 89 18 €L 1] 6% 0s Sl = <l NIAROY
JNMUSIBS-ODIN VION ||
oL 1L €l Zi €l Gi Gl Ll 8 8 |
uondaluj 104 pasn sii9
%2Z'99 %2 'S9 %'€9 %929 %229 %6°09 %8'65 %9'8S % LS %Z 95 (%) eanejpwng
%8'0L1 %9'0FL %9'S6 %S LL %4901 %L L6 %846 %6°¢0L %468 %E'E6 (%) fenuuy !
jusuedejday SSein
Ll 12’91 0sZL L SL'€L 8L'LL gLl ¥4 29’6 £8°01 (san vonig) usnyyg
| vOY (2R 0z 29t L2 00'S 6. 96F 182 8% (sq7 uoiig) syesuspuoy
8.6l LzZ'ie 98'bL 682l 96°/1L 2z9l 999l S/l ¥Lyl 0091 (sq uonig) iejol
:OBO_-.—_
0492 00°€0L 0L Y0l Z8 G0l 90L £9 801 10L (MIn) moT Ajyguopy
OL'E€0L 2/°60L oLl oLl 601 oLL 601 60L LL LZL bi l
1giX9|4 PeoT
44" 80°Gl ¥5°GlL 00'sL £8°91 0991 LA 891 cll Skl (sq1 uoting)
P3IBAI3Q Weas
oL/l 00°/L 0z'/L £e /1 66'glL 2L Ll 6£'8L €88l €671 £8°91L (my 1 sq7) |
UOISISAUOD WENS i
SoL 201 201 201 80L 801 801 80L ghl oLl N
288 £E6 966 G'86 26 £'66 0'86 ¥'96 8201 €201 ]
| 8682/ 6¥L'6L8 6.£'/€8 Zre'zes 28'9L8 2ev'zi8 Ly2'368 Z¥9'vv8 665'006 €51°Zv6 |
1’66 0'LoL L'E0L #'soL L'LOb 2'901 2'S0L 9'%0L 0ZLlL o9LL ) L
LLZ'eeR 662'/88 66Z'06 566'2Z6 00988 208'0€6 89£'926 LEV'OL6 00L°186 +¥06'8L0°L UM I
{SS04b ) uoneiouss B
2102 9102 §102 10T €102 (41114 1102 0102 6002 8002
ajqel Aewwung



Table 3

RESERVOIR PRESSURE
BY WELL 2018
WELL | PRESS | [WELL | PRESS WELL | PRESS | [ WELL | PRESS
A3 | 750 D-1 65.1 P-1
A4 | 741 D2 | 778 H-1 71.3 P2 | 102.8
A5 | 776 D6 | 743 H-2 83.6 P4 | 762
A6 | 742 D7 | 710 H-3 72.3 P-s | 1189
A-SITE | 752 D8 | 766 H-4 P6 | 535
D-SITE | 72.1 H-5 69.3 P7 | 850
B2 | 771 H-SITE | 74.1 P8 | 1153
B-3 | 783 E-1 75.3 P-9
B-4 | 76. E2 | 771 12 78.2 P-SITE | 92.0
B-5 | 7438 E-3 82.7 33 95.4
B-6 E4 | 768 J-4 99.4 Q-1
B-SITE | 76.6 E-5 76.5 J-5 107.5 Q3 | 660
E6 | 761 J-SITE | 95.1 Q4 | 637
C-1 63.3 E8 | 688 Qs | 718
c2 | 649 ESITE | 777 Q6 | 6716
c4 | 658 N-1 66.2 Q7 | 19
c-5s | 638 F-1 68.8 N-2 79.8 Q8 | 732
c-6 | 622 F-2 71.4 N-3 68.6 Q9 | 817
c-7 | 622 F-3 72.3 N-4 67.6 Q-SITE | 68.6
c-s | 701 F-4 N-5 67.7
c9 | 69.0 F-5 74.8 N-6 68.9 Y-1 | 706
c-10 | 644 F-6 | 712 N-SITE | 70.6 Y2 | 659
C-SITE | 65.1 F-7 | 695 Y3 | 735
F-SITE | 713 Y4 | 5438
Y-5
Y-SITE | 70.0
VALUES ARE FROM PRESSURE BUILD- UP TESTS
66 WELLS TESTED  AVE. WELL PRESS EQUALS 74.7 psig
AVE SITE PRESS EQUALS 75.7 psig
AVE. FLOWRATE = 25.7 kph at 44.1 psig

28




TABLE 4 NCG CONCENTRATIONS (PPMW) 2017

BY WELL, AND SITE AND PROJECT

WELL NCG WELL NCG WELL NCG WELL NCG
A-3 6136 D-1 2639 H-1 1746 P-1
A-4 2693 D-2 2636 H-2 1176 P-2 2404
A-5 1538 D-6 2579 H-3 4148 P-4 1088
A-6 2725 D-7 595 H-4 P-5 1178
A-SITE 3273 D-8 1800 H-5 3341 P-6 2595
D-SITE 1805 H-SITE 2603 P-7 3736
B-2 2767 P-8 3130
B-3 4001 E-1 8873 ) 3300 P9
B-4 2280 B2 | 3471 | I3 948 P-SITE 2355
B-5 2116 E-3 3554 J-4 1780
B-6 E-4 4448 J-5 761 Q-1
B-SITE 2791 E-5 7192 J-SITE 1697 Q-3 5042
E-6 3156 Q-4 1483
C-1 3238 E-SITE 5116 N-1 1620 Q-5 2252
C-2 3693 N-2 1242 Q-6 1191
C-4 3671 F-1 825 N-3 960 Q-7 10166
C-5 16009 F-2 3584 N-4 1458 Q-8 2276
C-6 6431 F-3 1992 N-5 3310 Q9 2296
C-7 3158 F-4 N-6 3518 Q-A
C-8 2760 F-5 340 N-SITE 2018 Q-SITE 3529
C-9 5396 F-6 888
C-A 041 F-7 1820 Y-1 2559
C-SITE 5033 F-SITE 1575 Y-2 3882
Y-3 3153
Y-4 4357
Y-5
Y-SITE 3488
VALUES ARE FROM NCPA CHEM LAB ANALYSIS
Number of wells samples wells sampled= 65
AVG. WELL NCG = 3108
AVG. SITE NCG = 2940
NCG Flow Weighted Avg. = 2854

29




2018 Generation - 25 Year Forecast

Table 5
Total Geo Facilities Plant#1 Plant #2
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Generation Generation Generation Generation Generation Generation
Year GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr

2018 868.3 794.8 490.3 438.7 378.0 356.1
2019 852.4 739.8 489.3 399.1 363.0 340.6
2020 827.8 757.1 480.0 431.3 347.8 325.8
2021 818.9 748.0 472.2 423.7 346.7 324.3
2022 764.6 695.3 466.0 417.4 298.6 277.9
2023 795.5 720.7 463.8 411.3 331.8 309.4
2024 784.7 709.7 459.0 406.5 325.7 303.2
2025 759.2 654.3 448.1 365.2 311.0 289.1
2026 754.1 683.1 442.5 393.9 311.7 289.3
2027 742.4 671.4 436.9 388.3 305.5 283.1
2028 700.9 627.9 436.3 384.0 264.6 243.9
2029 723.6 649.1 429.8 377.6 293.8 271.4
2030 703.0 632.5 421.0 372.4 282.0 260.1
2031 699.0 596.4 416.0 335.8 283.0 260.6
2032 690.9 619.7 412.1 363.4 278.7 256.2
2033 682.6 608.2 409.6 357.6 273.0 250.6
2034 641.1 568.5 404.8 352.9 236.3 215.6
2035 662.7 591.5 396.8 348.2 265.9 243.3
2036 653.3 582.1 393.3 344.6 260.0 237.5
2037 642.8 542.6 387.8 310.0 255.0 232.6
2038 637.5 563.3 386.7 334.9 250.8 228.4
2039 629.2 555.0 382.4 330.6 246.8 224.4
2040 585.2 516.7 375.0 326.4 210.2 190.3
2041 611.8 540.6 371.9 323.2 239.8 217.3
2042 602.4 531.4 366.9 318.3 235.5 213.1

Notes:

1. Assumes 3 unit operation.

2. Steam Reserves: 301.5 Billion Ib.

3. Gross Reserves: 17,834 GWhr

4. Net Reserves: 15,899 GWhr

5. Plant #1 Auxiliary Load is fixed at 5.68 MW.

Plant #2 Auxiliary Load is fixed at 2.58 MW.
6. Plant availaibility is 99.5% or a forced outage rate of 43.8 hrs per year.
7. See Table 5B for scheduled outages.

30



2018 Generation Capacity - 25 Year Forecast

Table 5A
Plant #1 Plant #2 Total
Avg. Gross Avg. Net Avg.Gross Avg.Net Avg.Gross Avg. Net
Gen. Gen. Gen. Gen. Gen. Gen.
Year Mw Mw MW Mw Mw Mw
2018 56.9 51.3 43.5 40.9 100.3 92.2
2019 56.1 46.3 42.0 394 98.1 85.7
2020 55.4 49.8 41.0 38.4 96.4 88.2
2021 54.6 49.0 40.1 37.5 94.7 86.5
2022 53.9 48.3 34.3 31.9 88.2 80.2
2023 53.2 47.6 38.4 35.8 91.6 83.4
2024 52.5 46.9 37.6 35.0 90.1 81.9
2025 51.8 42.4 36.8 34.2 88.6 76.6
2026 51.2 45.6 36.1 33.5 87.2 79.0
2027 50.5 449 35.3 32.8 85.9 777
2028 49.9 44.3 30.3 27.9 80.2 72.2
2029 49.3 43.7 34.0 31.4 83.3 75.1
2030 48.7 43.1 334 30.8 82.1 73.9
2031 48.1 38.9 32.7 30.2 80.9 69.1
2032 47.5 41.9 32.2 29.6 79.7 71.5
2033 47.0 41.4 31.6 29.0 78.6 704
2034 46.4 40.8 271 248 73.6 65.6
2035 45.9 40.3 30.5 27.9 76.4 68.2
2036 454 39.8 30.0 27.4 75.4 67.2
2037 44.9 36.0 29.5 26.9 74.4 62.9
2038 44 .4 38.7 29.0 26.4 73.4 65.2
2039 439 38.2 28.6 26.0 72.4 64.2
2040 43.4 37.8 24.6 22.2 68.0 60.0
2041 42.9 37.3 27.7 251 70.6 62.4
2042 42.4 36.8 27.2 247 69.7 61.5

* Average generation levels plants are capable of achieving.

31



2018 Scheduled Outages - 25 Year Forecast
Table 5B

Plant #1 Plant #2

Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 4
Scheduled Scheduled | Scheduled
Outages Outages | Outages

Year hrs hrs hrs
2018 72 72 72
2019 672 672 72
2020 72 72 72
2021 72 72 72
2022 72 72 1008
2023 72 72 72
2024 72 72 72
2025 672 672 72
2026 72 72 72
2027 72 72 72
2028 72 72 1008
2029 72 72 72
2030 72 72 72
2031 672 672 72
2032 72 72 72
2033 72 72 72
2034 72 72 1008
2035 72 72 72
2036 72 72 72
2037 672 672 72
2038 72 72 72
2039 72 72 72
2040 72 72 1008
2041 72 72 72
2042 72 72 72

32



2018 Generation - 5 Year Forecast

Table 6
Total Geo Facilities Plant #1 Plant #2
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Generation Generation Generation Generation Generation Generation
Date GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr

Jan-18 77.0 72.7 43.1 40.6 33.9 32.1
Feb-18 70.0 64.1 39.6 354 30.4 28.7
Mar-18 80.9 69.7 47.7 38.2 33.2 31.5
Apr-18 5§76 53.4 27.7 25.0 29.9 28.3
May-18 74.1 68.1 42.2 38.1 31.9 30.0
Jun-18 716 65.8 40.8 36.8 30.8 29.0
Jul-18 73.9 67.8 42.1 38.0 31.8 29.9
Aug-18 73.8 67.7 42.1 37.9 31.7 29.8
Sep-18 71.3 65.4 40.7 36.6 30.7 28.8
Oct-18 73.6 67.5 42,0 37.8 316 29.7
Nov-18 711 65.2 40.6 36.5 30.5 28.7
Dec-18 734 67.3 419 37.7 31.5 29.6
Jan-19 73.2 67.2 41.8 37.7 314 29.5
Feb-19 66.1 60.6 37.7 34.0 28.3 26.6
Mar-19 70.0 26.5 4.7 0.0 28.3 26.5
Apr-19 70.6 61.1 40.3 327 30.2 28.4
May-19 72.8 66.8 41.6 375 31.2 29.3
Jun-19 704 64.5 40.2 36.2 30.1 28.3
Jul-19 726 66.5 415 374 311 29.1
Aug-19 725 66.4 41.5 37.3 31.0 29.1
Sep-19 70.0 64.2 40.1 36.1 29.9 28.1
Oct-19 723 66.2 41.4 37.2 30.9 29.0
Nov-19 69.8 64.0 40.0 36.0 29.8 28.0
Dec-19 72.1 66.0 41.3 371 30.8 28.8
Jan-20 71.9 65.9 41.2 37.1 30.7 28.8
Feb-20 67.2 61.5 38.5 34.7 28.7 26.9
Mar-20 717 65.7 41.2 37.0 30.6 28.7
Apr-20 54.5 49.7 35.8 32.2 18.7 17.5
May-20 71.5 65.4 411 36.9 30.5 28.5
Jun-20 69.1 63.2 39.7 35.7 29.4 276
Jul-20 713 65.2 41.0 36.8 30.3 28.4
Aug-20 71.2 65.1 40.9 36.8 30.3 28.4
Sep-20 68.8 62.9 39.6 35.5 29.3 27.4
Oct-20 71.0 64.9 40.8 36.7 30.2 28.3
Nov-20 68.6 62.7 39.5 354 29.1 27.3
Dec-20 70.8 64.7 40.7 36.6 30.1 28.1
Jan-21 70.7 64.6 40.7 36.5 30.0 28.1
Feb-21 63.8 58.3 36.7 33.0 27.0 25.3
Mar-21 67.6 61.7 40.6 36.4 27.0 25.3
Apr-21 64.2 58.7 35.3 31.7 28.9 27.0
May-21 70.3 64.2 40.5 36.4 29.8 27.9
Jun-21 67.9 62.0 39.2 35.1 28.8 26.9
Jul-21 70.1 64.0 40.4 36.3 29.7 277
Aug-21 70.0 63.9 404 36.2 29.6 27.7
Sep-21 67.6 61.7 39.0 35.0 28.6 26.7
Oct-21 69.8 63.7 40.3 36.1 29.5 27.6
Nov-21 67.4 616 38.9 34.9 28.5 26.6
Dec-21 69.6 63.5 40.2 36.0 29.4 27.5
Jan-22 69.5 63.4 40.2 36.0 29.3 27.4
Feb-22 62.7 57.2 36.2 325 26.4 247
Mar-22 40.1 359 40.1 35.9 0.0 0.0
Apr-22 49.0 435 348 31.2 14.1 12.3
May-22 69.1 63.0 40.0 35.8 29.1 27.2
Jun-22 66.8 60.9 386 34.6 28.1 26.3
Jul-22 68.9 62.8 39.9 35.7 29.0 271
Aug-22 68.8 62.7 39.8 35.7 29.0 27.0
Sep-22 66.5 60.6 38.5 345 28.0 26.1
Oct-22 68.6 62.5 398 35.6 28.9 26.9
Nov-22 66.3 60.4 384 344 27.9 26.0

33



2018 Generation Capacity - 5 Year Forecast™®

Table 6A
Plant #1 Plant #2 Total
Avg. Gross Avg.Net Avg.Gross Avg. Net Avg.Gross Avg. Net
Gen. Gen. Gen. Gen, Gen. Gen,
Year Mw Mw MW Mw Mw MW
Jan-18 57.9 54.6 456 43.1 103.5 97.7
Feb-18 55.0 49.2 45.2 42.7 100.2 91.9
Mar-18 58.2 514 448 424 103.0 93.7
Apr-18 571 51.5 43.2 40.6 100.3 92.1
May-18 57.0 514 431 40.6 100.2 92.0
Jun-18 57.0 513 431 40.5 100.0 91.8
Jul-18 56.9 51.3 43.0 40.4 99.9 91.8
Aug-18 56.8 51.2 42.9 40.3 99.7 91.5
Sep-18 56.8 51.1 42.8 40.2 99.5 91.3
Oct-18 56.7 51.1 42.7 40.1 99.4 91.2
Nov-18 56.6 51.0 42.6 40.0 99.2 91.0
Dec-18 56.6 50.9 42,5 40.0 99.1 90.9
Jan-19 56.5 50.9 42.5 39.9 98.9 90.7
Feb-19 56.4 50.8 42.4 39.8 98.8 90.6
Mar-19 56.4 0.0 42.3 39.7 98.7 39.7
Apr-19 56.3 50.7 42.2 39.6 98.5 90.3
May-19 56.2 50.6 42.1 38.5 984 90.1
Jun-19 56.2 50.5 420 39.5 08.2 90.0
Jul-19 56.1 50.5 42.0 394 98.1 89.9
Aug-19 56.0 50.4 41.9 39.3 97.9 89.7
Sep-19 56.0 50.4 41.8 39.2 97.8 89.6
Oct-19 55.9 50.3 41.7 39.1 97.6 89.4
Nov-19 55.8 50.2 416 39.0 97.5 89.3
Dec-19 55.8 50.2 41.6 39.0 97.3 89.1
Jan-20 55.7 50.1 41.5 38.9 97.2 89.0
Feb-20 55.7 50.0 414 38.8 97.0 88.8
Mar-20 556 50.0 41.3 38.7 96.9 88.7
Apr-20 55.5 49.9 41.2 38.6 96.8 88.6
May-20 55.5 49.8 41.2 38.6 96.6 88.4
Jun-20 55.4 49.8 411 38.5 96.5 88.3
Jul-20 55.3 49.7 41.0 384 96.3 88.1
Aug-20 55.3 49.7 40.9 38.3 96.2 88.0
Sep-20 55.2 49.6 40.8 38.2 96.1 87.8
Oct-20 55.2 49.5 40.8 38.2 95.9 87.7
Nov-20 55.1 49.5 40.7 38.1 95.8 87.6
Dec-20 55.0 494 40.6 38.0 95.6 87.4
Jan-21 55.0 49.3 40.5 379 95.5 87.3
Feb-21 54.9 49.3 40.4 379 954 87.1
Mar-21 54.9 49.2 40.4 378 95.2 87.0
Apr-21 54.8 49.2 40.3 37.7 95.1 86.9
May-21 54.7 49.1 40.2 376 95.0 86.7
Jun-21 54.7 49.0 401 376 94.8 86.6
Jul-21 546 49.0 40.1 37.5 947 86.5
Aug-21 545 48.9 40.0 374 94.5 86.3
Sep-21 54.5 48.9 399 37.3 94.4 86.2
Oct-21 54.4 48.8 39.8 37.3 94.3 86.1
Nov-21 544 48.7 39.8 37.2 94.1 85.9
Dec-21 54.3 48.7 39.7 371 94.0 85.8
Jan-22 54.2 48.6 39.6 37.0 93.9 85.7
Feb-22 542 48.6 39.6 37.0 93.7 85.5
Mar-22 54.1 48.5 0.0 0.0 54.1 48.5
Apr-22 54.1 484 19.7 171 73.8 65.6
May-22 54.0 48.4 39.3 36.7 93.3 85.1
Jun-22 53.9 48.3 393 36.7 93.2 85.0
Jul-22 53.9 48.3 39.2 36.6 93.1 84.9
Aug-22 53.8 48.2 39.1 36.5 929 84.7
Sep-22 53.8 48.1 39.0 36.5 92.8 84.6
Oct-22 53.7 48.1 39.0 36.4 92.7 84.5
Nov-22 53.6 48.0 38.9 36.3 92.5 84.3
Dec-22 53.6 48.0 38.8 36.2 92.4 84.2

* Average generation levels plants are capable of achieving.

34



TABLE 7

2018 FORECAST OF GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION AND

INJECTION
STEAM | COND | WATER
TIME PROD. INJ INJ
STEP|DATE| BLBS BLBS BLBS
1 2018 14.4 4.6 15.1
2 2019 14.1 4.5 15.0
3 2020 13.9 4.4 15.0
4 2021 13.7 4.4 14.9
5 2022 13.5 4.3 14.8
6 2023 13.2 4.2 14.7
7 2024 13.0 4.2 14.7
8 2025 12.8 4.1 14.6
9 2026 12.6 4.0 14.6
10 2027 12.5 4.0 14.5
11 2028 12.3 3.9 14.4
12 2029 12.1 3.9 14.4
13 2030 11.9 3.8 14.3
14 | 2031 11.8 3.8 14.3
15 2032 11.6 3.7 14.2
16 2033 11.4 3.7 14.2
17 2034 11.3 3.6 14.1
18 2035 11.1 3.6 14.1
19 2036 11.0 3.5 14.0
20 2037 10.9 3.5 14.0
21 2038 10.7 3.4 13.9
22 2038 10.6 3.4 13.9
23 2039 10.5 3.3 13.9
24 2040 10.3 3.3 13.8
25 2041 10.2 3.3 13.8
NOTES :

1. CUM. PRODUCTION AND INJECTION 1983-2017

2. TOTAL WATER IS CONDENSATE + EFFLUENT + LAKE + POND

3. FUTURE STEAM PRODUCTION 2018-2042 =

4. FUTURE WATER INJECTION 2018-2042 =

35

656.2
434.5

301.5

359.2

Billion Lbs Steam
Billion Lbs Water

Billion Lbs

Billion Lbs



e

ANNIVERSARY’

Commission Staff Report

Date: May 16, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 24, 2018

SUBJECT: Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement

for fire system maintenance services; Applicable to the following projects: All

NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

15

FROM: Ken Speer @

Division: Generation Services

Department: Combustion Turbines

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

o O o0 O 0 X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

o o o o o o

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 149:18



Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
May 24, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 18-35 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. for fire system
maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”"), or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Fire system maintenance services are required from time to time related to project support at
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years to be
used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has an agreement with Sabah
International for similar services. NCPA seeks bids from multiple qualified providers whenever
services are needed. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase
orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 2, 2018, and was
recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on May 14, 2018, and was approved.

SR: 149:18



Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
May 24, 2018
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

?qﬁ [+

General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

SR: 149:18



RESOLUTION 18-35

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BAY CITIES
PYROTECTOR, INC.

(reference Staff Report #149:18)

WHEREAS, fire system maintenance services are periodically required at the facilites owned and/or
operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Bay Cities
Pyrotector, Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA Generation facility locations, Member, SCPPA,
and SCPPA Member facilities, in an amount not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for fire system maintenance services for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or
by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



7
NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
BAY CITIES PYROTECTOR, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc., a
California corporation with its office located at 1315 67" Street, Emeryville, CA 94608
(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2018
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

13

14

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Reguest for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Work, which shali
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 2 of 22



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days

after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (20) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

4.1

4.2

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

4.2.2

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 3 of 22



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable.

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Agency shall have the right to require Contractor to
provide the certificates of insurance and/or policy endorsements, as
referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific Agency member,
SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 4 of 22



Section 5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 22



otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3  Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 6 of 22



6.5

6.6

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor and its
employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their
sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 22



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Ad(ditionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: hitp://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 8 of 22



Section 9.

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 9 of 22



where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 10 of 22



Section 10.

Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-037
Northern California Power Agency and Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 11 of 22



Section 11.

WARRANTY.

1.1

11.2

11.3

Section 12.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contr